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Why Lubrizol?



CORPORATE PROFILE
The Lubrizol Corporation is a global fluid technology company concentrating

on high-performance chemicals, systems and services for transportation and industry.

Founded in 1928, with headquarters in Cleveland, Ohio, the company operates

manufacturing and blending facilities, laboratories and offices staffed by over 4,500

employees around the world.

Lubrizol is a market leader in specialty additives for lubricants and fuels.

Lubrizol's fluid technologies for transportation improve operating efficiency and

reduce environmental impact in all types of vehicles. In addition, the company

produces chemical products and systems that enhance performance and reduce

environmental hazards and health exposure in industrial operations. Lubrizol's fluid

technologies for industry are found in a variety of applications, including coatings

and inks, compressor lubricants, metalworking fluids and defoamers.

As a technology company, Lubrizol continuously seeks new ways to leverage

its expertise. Current initiatives are focused on advanced fluid systems and fluid

contaminant management including filtration, remediation and emission control.

Why Lubrizol? It's a basic question. One that was instrumental in crafting the

vision we introduced last year. We built our vision on the answers to that question—

answers that make Lubrizol the obvious choice as a supplier, employer and

acquisition partner. People choose Lubrizol because of our problem-solving culture,

innovative technologies and global supply and service capabilities. We also carefully

considered how our new direction would bring the type of steady, sustainable

growth that our investors expect from Lubrizol. The result was a plan for the future

that builds on our strengths while moving us beyond our traditional markets.

Why Lubrizol? Our customers, investors, employees and neighbors will all have

their own answers. All of them are important to us. However, we believe that the

ultimate answer is simply stated in our vision: We will create technologies that make

the world a better place.

Since introducing our vision, we have identified seven destinations and realigned

our priorities. We also positioned our resources to support both our traditional

chemistry-based businesses and new opportunities that center on hardware, systems

and services.

In this year's Annual Report, we have asked some of our stakeholders to share

their thoughts on why Lubrizol makes a difference in their world.

Why Lubrizol?
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THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

On Millions Except Per Share and Employee Data) 2001 2000
Increase

(Decrease)

OPERATIONS:

Revenues 	 $1,844.6 $1,775.8 4%

Net income 	 94.1 118.0 (20%)

Net income before special charges and credits and litigation gain 94.1 103.1 (9%)

Net income per share	 	 1.84 2.22 (17%)

Net income per share before special charges and credits and
litigation gain	 	 1.84 1.94 (5%)

Dividends per share 	 1.04 1.04

Cash provided from operating activities	 	 195.8 226.2 (13%)

Return on shareholders' equity before special charges and credits
and litigation gain	 	 12% 13%

FINANCIAL POSITION:

Total assets 	 $1,662.3 $1,659.5

Shareholders' equity	 	 773.2 752.3 3%

Debt as a percent of capitalization 	 34% 34%

OTHER:

Capital expenditures 	 	 $	 66.3 $	 85.8 (23%)

Shares outstanding at December 31 	 51.2 51.3

Number of employees 	 4,530 4,390 3%

COMMON SHARE PRICE HISTORY

2001 2000

High Low High Low

1st quarter 	 $33.65 $24.13 $33.50 $23.75

2nd quarter	 	 33.69 28.25 28.06 21.00

3rd quarter 	 37.69 28.00 24.12 18.56

4th quarter 	 35.75 27.75 26.00 19.06

WORLDWIDE BY PRODUCT
01,94 .1.6 MILLION IN REVENUES

RI Engine Oil Additives

Driveline Oil Additives

▪ Fluid Technologies for inclusfrY

IC Fuel Products

Additive Components

WORLDWIDE BY ZONE
51.844.6 MILLION IN REVENUES

45%

30%

10%

7%

▪ North America

111 Europe. Middle East

-- Asia Pacific

▪ Latin America



TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

The question "Why Lubrizol?" speaks to the essence of delivering shareholder value.

Just over a year ago, we addressed this question with our "fluid technologies for a better

world' vision. Since then, I've traveled throughout the world, discussing our growth plans

with employees, customers and shareholders. By embracing the vision, these stakeholders

are helping us revitalize our company.

Investors have responded positively to our performance and to our potential for

profitable growth: Lubrizol's market value and stock price increased 36 percent in 2001,

compared with a 13 percent decrease for the S&P 500 Index. Adding dividends to this

appreciation resulted in a total annual return to Lubrizol's shareholders of 41 percent.
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Revenues for 2001 were the highest in
Lubrizol's history—up four percent over 2000 on
record shipment volumes. Our track record of
strong cash flow continued: year-end cash flow
from operations approached $200 million. However,
we were disappointed that earnings of $1.84 per
share for the year fell a bit below 2000 results and
below our early 2001 expectations, largely due to
higher raw material costs. Details on the financial
condition and results of operations can be found
in the management discussion and analysis section
of this report.

Turning to our strategy and accomplishments,
I would like to highlight our results for 2001. This
past year we set an ambitious two-part agenda—
running the business while simultaneously changing
the business to fit our vision for growth.

In running the business, Lubrizol's fluid tech-
nologies for transportation segment tends to be
more recession-resistant than many other manufac-
turing industries—especially in the early stages
of economic downturns when vehicle mileage and
maintenance as well as product shipments tend
to remain fairly stable. Nevertheless, the turbulent
world economy affected our results for this segment
in 2001. Weakness in the Asian economy affected
our transportation business all year. In addition,
From September onward, demand weakened in
North America and Europe.

Compared to our transportation segment.
Fluid technologies for industry is more susceptible
to manufacturing cycles. Our 2001 segment results
show the effect of the economy on our industrial
business.

However, these setbacks were offset by new
engine oil revenues we gained early in the year as

a result of our industry and technical leadership.
Additionally, revenues from the late-2000 consolida-
tion of our China joint venture compensated for
market contraction in the rest of Asia.

Although margins were affected by higher
raw material costs and the negative effect of the
strong U.S. dollar, we continued to improve
manufacturing efficiency. One example was the
complete integration of ALOX ® metalworking
products, acquired in 2000, into our Painesville,
Ohio, manufacturing facility. Excluding acquisitions,
manufacturing expense declined in 2001, even
though production volume and utility costs
increased. Moreover, manufacturing expense as a
percent of sales was the lowest since 1980. These
results were due to prior years' manufacturing cost
reductions and ongoing careful expense manage-
ment. We also improved our management of
working capital this year, with average days' sales
in inventory and receivables down in the range
of three to five percent.

Selling, testing, administrative and research
expenses were higher than 2000. Testing programs
to support the successful commercialization of the
newest passenger car motor oil standard were
completed by mid-year and were followed immedi-
ately by challenges to accelerate development of the
next diesel engine oil upgrade, which is expected
to be introduced in late-2002. In addition, we spent
judiciously on early-stage programs needed to
advance our vision.

All our change-the-business initiatives cen-
tered on the vision. In working to change the
business through acquisitions, we sharpened our
focus and increased our screening activity during
the year. However, ROSS Chem, Inc. was our only
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acquisition completed in 2001. ROSS specializes in
antifoam and defoaming agents for the coatings,
inks, textile, food and metalworking industries, and
was acquired in January 2001. Complementing
ROSS, in January 2002, we announced the acquisi-
tion of Kabo Unlimited, Inc., further strengthening
the defoamer offerings and capabilities of fluid tech-
nologies for industry.

In January of this year, we also agreed to
acquire Chemron Corporation, a supplier of
specialty surfactants used in a wide variety of mar-
kets, including personal care and industrial cleaners.
Upon completion of the transaction, Chemron
will extend Lubrizol's business into high-growth
surfactants markets.

Emissions regulations drove several of our
more internally focused change-the-business accom-
plishments. These initiatives included PuriNOx'"
low-emission diesel fuel technology, advanced fluid
systems and contaminant management.

Regulators and initial customers validated
the performance of our PuriN0x technology, and
various local, state and international governments
showed their support by granting tax relief or
other financial incentives to customers. R&D
Magazine selected PuriN0x as one of the 100 most
technologically significant new products of the
year. Commercial sales have been slower than we
planned, but we are enthusiastic about the
momentum that is building for this exciting new
fuel technology.

We successfully replaced our advanced fluid
systems joint venture with GE Transportation
Systems with cross-licensing agreements. Based on
proof of field performance, GE Transportation
Systems is proceeding with commercialization of

Lubrizol's FluiPak - technology for railroad markets,
while we are pursuing other transportation and
industrial markets.

We also defined a strategy for contaminant
management, where we are seeking to prevent,
control or remediate fluid contaminants in vehicles
or industrial equipment, and we launched several
new product development programs—both inter-
nally and with a series of best-in-class external
partners. Contaminant management also is a key
focus for acquisitions involving fluids, hardware
and systems.

Looking forward, the slowing world economy,
ongoing customer consolidation and vulnerability
to changing raw material costs all contribute to the
uncertain environment we face in the year ahead.
Therefore, prudent actions are being taken in all
parts of the Corporation. Yet, we expect to make
visible progress on our vision in 2002. In the year
ahead, my goal is to respond to a wider range of
growth opportunities with the challenge: "Why not
Lubrizol?". Reflecting on the events of the past year
only strengthens our determination that our
vision—to make products work better, last longer
and benefit the environment—is the path to
improved shareholder value.

The Board of Directors, officers and all the
employees of Lubrizol join me in expressing our
great appreciation for your support during the
past year.

W. G. Bares
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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NANCY RONSKO

IS MANAGER, ENVIRONMENTAL

POLICY AND REGULATORY

AFFAIRS FOR LUBRIZOL.
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Why Lubrizol? "I'm proud to work
for Lubrizol because I believe that our

technology plays an important role in making
lives safer and more productive. Lubrizol has
a long history of environmental responsibility.

In just one example, our emission control
solutions are helping thousands of people

benefit from cleaner air."

Our new vision is closely tied to the environment, and we are moving
forward with new energy to become recognized as an environmental leader
and advocate. The demands of the environment and ever more stringent
government regulations represent some of the greatest challenges faced by
our industry in the twenty-first century.

For example, in 2001, we advanced the commercialization process for
PuriN0x Performance Systems, our low-emission, water-blend fuel product
combining additive chemistry with a specialized blend unit. California Air
Resources Board (CARB), the lead agency for the protection of the state's
air quality, issued formal verification that PuriN0x reduces smog-forming
nitrogen oxides (N0x) by 14 percent and particulate matter (PM), or soot,
by 63 percent. We also worked with agencies in California, Texas and British
Columbia to achieve tax relief. Outside North America, customers, including
BP in the U.K. and Kuwait Petroleum Italia S.p.A. in Italy, are marketing flu-
ids containing PuriN0x.

We also are concentrating on fluid contaminant management. This
technical destination is focused on the prevention, monitoring, control and
remediation of contaminants resulting from transportation and industrial
activities. We believe that this market offers significant growth potential.

Our vision talks about making the world a better place. However,
we believe that a better world means more than cleaner air. It also means
vehicles, equipment and products that operate as they are supposed to,
under tough conditions, for longer periods of time. At Lubrizol, we under-
stand how to balance the competing demands of technology, the environ-
ment and the marketplace so that the world is simpler and more reliable—
a better place for everyone.

STATIONARY GAS ENGINE OILSPASSENGER CAR MOTOR OILS	 HEAVY-DUTY DIESEL ENGINE OILS



GILSON SANTOS

IS THE ZONE MANAGER FOR

LUBRIZOL'S LATIN AMERICA

SALES ORGANIZATION

BASED IN RIO DE JANEIRO.

Why Lubrizol? "My customers choose
Lubrizol because of our quality products and

innovative approach to problem solving.
Recently, a large Brazilian oil company

acknowledged the technological credibility
of Lubrizol products by including a Powered by

Lubrizol logo on the bottle of their new oil.
It was a first for us and a testament to the

value we bring to our customers."

As we pursue our vision, we will continue to seek new opportunities

in the area of fluid technologies for transportation. No one understands this

product area better than I.ubrizol. It is our core business and the basis for our

expanded technologies. We are, and intend to remain, the recognized leader

in this industry. Our customers can count on us for superior service and high-

quality products designed to meet the most stringent environmental and

performance specifications.
With three global technical centers and a culture keyed to technology,

Lubrizol is on the forefront of lubricant additive development, whether it is

anticipating the performance characteristics of passenger car engine oil

additives to meet the next specification or developing a revolutionary new

diesel engine oil additive. Perhaps the greatest benefit Lubrizol offers our

customers is our seven decades of experience in the science of lubricant

additive chemistry. We are in the business of solving problems, and, when it

comes to our customers, we deliver.

In addition to our additive chemistry, we also provide a variety of services

designed to make day-to-day business easier. Ordering is convenient through

myLubrizol.com , our e-Rusiness initiative, which now covers Europe, North

America, Asia and Latin America. Lubrizol continues to encourage customers

and strategic suppliers to connect with us electronically through the Envera

network of ChemConnect, a transaction clearinghouse. And we are beginning

to market some of our testing and blending capabilities to both traditional and

new customers. Every lubricant manufacturer, no matter how large or small,

is facing a world filled with unprecedented challenges. We can help.

OFF-HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT FLUIDS IW!SMALL ENGINE OILS AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION FLUIDS AUTOMOTIVE & INDUSTRIAL
GEAR LUBRICANTS
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GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL HYDRAULIC FLUIDS METALWORKING FLUIDS

CHRIS MARKS

IS A SENIOR ANALYST WITH

BERNSTEIN INVESTMENT RESEARCH

AND MANAGEMENT, A UNIT OF

ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT,

BASED IN NEW )IORK.
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Why Lubrizol? "As an investor,
Bernstein was initially attracted to

Lubrizol's strong cash flow—the result
of a leading market position and

disciplined use of capital. Looking to the
future, we're optimistic about Lubrizol's

prospects for enhancing shareholder value
through leveraging technology

into new growth areas."

Lubrizol's long-term investors recognize the value of our market and
technology leadership. They appreciate the predictability and relative
stability of our traditional industry. Investors have voiced their support
for our initiatives to strengthen profitability through price leadership and
prudent cost management. All of these factors are linked to our strong,
consistent operating cash flow.

This year, investors also responded favorably to our vision for growth.
They realize that each of the technical destinations in our vision is rooted in
our history and represents a logical progression of our capabilities. External
drivers also build a strong case for our vision with investors. These drivers
include not only more stringent environmental standards but also increased
demands for improved equipment efficiency and durability.

Our vision is centered on fluid technologies for a better world. Making
the world a better place is an admirable and attainable goal. At the same
time, we must never lose sight of the reason we are here. We understand
that we need to continue to deliver the value our shareholders have come
to expect from Lubrizol. That is the reason we developed and aligned
metrics around goals that we believe will deliver shareholder value. We use
those metrics as the basis for variable compensation for an increasing
number of our managers.

We will succeed in reaching our financial targets because Lubrizol
has an innovative, cost-efficient operation with a strong foundation. Our
vision builds on that foundation. It plays to our strengths. It has energized
our employees. And we believe in it. There is no better basis for increasing
shareholder value.



ACRYLIC FIBER CHEMICALSMINING EXPLOSIVES
liriamossom

JACK KIMES

IS PRESIDENT OF GATEWAY

ADDITIVE COMPANY

AND LUBRIZOL'S GLOBAL

GENERAL MANAGER

FOR ITS METALWORKING

SEGMENT.

Why Lubrizol? "I have always been told,
'As you grow your business, study

companies that you admire.'
Lubrizol is such a company—a leader in the

industry dedicated to customer service,
high-quality products and performance.
These traits are important to me, and

I've tried to instill them in my company,
Gateway Additives. That's why, when

I decided to sell Gateway, I chose Lubrizol."

There are two paths to growth. One is internally focused, building on
long-established competencies and expanding existing strengths and technology
portfolios into new market areas. The other path is through acquisitions.
Internal growth is important to Lubrizol, but it will not be enough for us to
reach the ambitious financial targets we have set. That is why we are aggressively
pursuing acquisitions that are closely aligned with our strengths and vision.

The Gateway Additive Company was the first metalworking business
Lubrizol acquired. Others, including Becker Chemie and the metalworking
additive business of Alox Corporation, soon followed. In 2001, we relocated
Alox's product manufacturing to our Painesville, Ohio, manufacturing plant.
Because of the transition team's efforts, the integration was completed on
schedule and under budget. We view the acquisition of Alox as a model for
the future.

Also in 2001, we made an acquisition, ROSS Chem, Inc., that opened up
an important new product area for us. ROSS Chem specializes in defoamers,
which are chemical products used in metalworking, coatings, inks and textiles.
These products are critical to Fluid performance. The ROSS Chem product line
complements existing Lubrizol technology and adds another dimension to our
product offering.

We are committed to our acquisition strategy, but we are moving carefully.
We want growth, but it must be reasonable, prudent growth that enhances
our position in the fluid technologies arena.







KEN IVVASHITA

IS MANAGER OF PUBLIC

AFFAIRS FOR THE LUBRIZOL

CORPORATION. HE HAS

SERVED AS PRESIDENT

OF THE LUBRIZZDL

FOUNDATION SINCE 1995.
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Why Lubrizol? "As president of The
Lubrizol Foundation, I see firsthand how

Lubrizol is making the world a better place
by supporting educational and charitable

organizations. Even more importantly,
Lubrizol employees, with the full support
of the Corporation, are giving their time

and talents to local schools and communities.
I can't think of a better definition

of a better world."

Corporations, like private citizens, have a responsibility to their
communities. While our corporate vision is only a year old, our commitment
to making the world a better place goes back to the earliest days of our
company. The Lubrizol Foundation is one example of that commitment.
A private foundation established in 1952, it makes grants to support a variety
of educational, civic and cultural activities. The Foundation administers
Lubrizol's Matching Gift Program and funds a scholarship program at 37
colleges and universities.

Lubrizol encourages its employees to become actively involved in the
community, especially in the area of education. Our global facilities sponsor
reading and mentoring programs, school tours and programs that encourage
an appreciation of science, environmental accountability and community
responsibility. In 2001, The Lubrizol Corporation established The Lubrizol
Founders Award, presented to those employees around the world who have
demonstrated outstanding customer and community service. This year's
recipients volunteer their time and talents in areas ranging from mentoring
local school children to building houses for Habitat for Humanity.

As a member of the American Chemistry Council, Lubrizol supports
Responsible Carel the chemical industry's initiative to improve health,
safety and environmental performance worldwide. Protecting the health
and safety of our employees, customers and neighbors has been part of our
corporate philosophy since we began. Lubrizol's founders realized the
importance of being a good neighbor. Today, we understand that a better
world begins with each of us.

ZEFRIGERATION COMPRESSOR
LUBRICANTS PRECISION METERING irmimm11111= EMULSIFIED FUELS
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THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Lubrizol Corporation is a global fluid technology com-

pany that develops, produces and sells high-performance

chemicals, systems and services for industry and transporta-

tion. We create these products, including specialty additive

packages and related equipment, for use in transportation

and industrial lubricant and other markets. We do this by

applying advanced chemical and mechanical technologies in

order to enhance the performance, quality and value and

reduce the environmental impact of the customer products

in which our products are used.

We are a geographically diverse company operating manu-

facturing and blending facilities, laboratories and offices

around the world, through the efforts of approximately 4,500

employees. Our product lines are grouped into two operating

segments: fluid technologies for transportation and fluid tech-

nologies for industry. Fluid technologies For transportation

comprised approximately 83% of our consolidated revenues

and 96% of segment pre-tax operating profit in 2001. This

discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results

of operations generally is focused on Lubrizol in its entirety,

since we believe this provides the most appropriate under-

standing of our business. Note 12 to the financial statements

contains a further description of the nature of our operations,

the product lines within each of the operating segments,

segment operating profit and related financial disclosures.

We believe the global growth rate for transportation lubricant

additives is approximately 1% per year. A variety of industry

market forces and conditions continues to present significant

challenges in this business. Among these market factors are

improved engine design and longer drain intervals, industry

overcapacity, frequent product specification changes and con-

solidation of the customer base. Although we are the market

leader in this business, the marketplace continues to be

extremely competitive.

We plan to continue to invest in and run our traditional

transportation lubricant additive business so as to remain the

market leader and generate strong cash flows consistent

with our historical track record. In addition, we believe there

arc opportunities for growth in both the transportation

market and the faster-growing industrial markets. Accord-

ingly, we are expanding beyond our traditional business by

14 using our strengths, including our technology and broad

geographic infrastructure, to develop and invest in new fluid

technology applications that will expand the markets in

which we participate. In addition to internal investment in

research and development, prudent acquisitions will be key

to our growth.

2001 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In 2001, our results reflected the competitive conditions in

our industry and the economic uncertainty and weak busi-

ness environment within the global economy. Although we

had record shipment volume, 2001 earnings were lower than

the prior year due primarily to our inability to recover higher

average raw material cost. Higher operating expenses (manu-

facturing, selling and administrative, research, development

and testing expenses), a higher effective tax rate and a prior

year gain from a litigation settlement and special charge

adjustments that did not recur in 2001 also contributed to the

lower earnings.

In 2001, we achieved record consolidated revenues of $1.84

billion, which represented an increase of $68.9 million, or 4%

(2% excluding acquisitions), compared with 2000. The rev-

enue increase was due to a 4% increase in shipment volume,

one-half of which was due to acquisitions including the

consolidation of our

China subsidiaries in

the fourth quarter of

2000. Average additive

selling price for 2001

remained flat with the

prior year. This was the

result of a 3% increase

in product selling prices due to the price increases initiated

during 2000 and offsetting unfavorable currency effects and

product mix changes. Fluid technologies for transportation

revenues increased $68.9 million, or 5%, compared with

2000 primarily due to increased shipment volume from

acquisitions and market share gains. Fluid technologies for

industry revenues were approximately the same as 2000, as

the impact of the weak manufacturing sector in North

America offset the additional revenues from an acquisition in

2001. The $1.0 million increase in royalties and other rev-

enues was primarily due to increased royalties for synthetic

refrigeration lubricants.

Changes in our shipment volume vary in different geographi-

cal areas. The following table shows our 2001 shipment vol-

ume by geographic area as well as the corresponding changes

compared with 2000:

2001 Volume
Increase

(Decrease)

North America 42% 7%

Europe, Middle East 33% 5%

Asia-Pacific 18% (1%)

Latin America 70/0 (3%)

Total 100% 40/0
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THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

The 2001 increases over 2000 were primarily due to business

gains in our engine oil additives product group in North

America and strong shipments to many of our multinational

engine oil customers in Europe. The 1% decrease in Asia-

Pacific includes the favorable impact of the consolidation of

our China subsidiaries during the fourth quarter of 2000.

Excluding China, Asia-Pacific volume would have declined

9% for the year, primarily due to the economic weakness in

the region and some lost engine oil additive business in

Japan. In Latin America, shipment volume was down due to

order patterns and the economic slowdown in the region.

Cost of sales for 2001 increased 4% (2% from acquisitions)

from 2000 due to increased shipment levels and higher raw

material costs. Average raw material cost in 2001 increased

2% over the prior year because of the higher cost of crude oil

and natural gas and the use of higher-cost raw materials to

meet the new U.S. engine oil specification. During the first

half of 2001, our raw material costs were higher than the first

half of 2000 due to the impact of higher crude oil costs on

petrochemical prices and the impact of higher natural gas

costs on our butylene-based raw materials. Crude oil and

natural gas costs started to come down during the second

quarter and sequentially declined in the third and fourth

quarters of 2001. Although there have been some announced

raw material price decreases early in 2002, we are uncertain

as to the Icvel of raw material prices for the remainder of the

year. Manufacturing costs, which are included in cost of

sales, increased by 1% in 2001 compared with 2000, but

decreased by 2% after excluding acquisitions. Unit manufac-

turing costs (manufacturing costs per metric ton sold) were

down 3% compared with 2000.

Gross profit (net sales less cost of sales) increased by $10.7

million, or 2% ($3.1 million, or less than 1%, excluding

acquisitions), in 2001 compared with 2000 primarily for the

reasons expressed above. Gross profit for fluid technologies

for transportation increased by $12.6 million, or 3%, for 2001

compared with 2000, for the same reasons. Gross profit for

fluid technologies for industry decreased by $9.7 million, or

9%, in 2001 compared with 2000. Excluding the impact of

acquisitions, this gross profit decreased by $14.4 million, or

13%, primarily because the weak manufacturing sector in

North America adversely affected our industrial additives and

performance chemicals product groups. We also incurred a

write-off of $2.8 million for obsolete inventory in our perfor-

mance systems product group during the second half of 2001.

In calculating gross profit at the operating segment level, we

exclude excess capacity from product costs. (See Note 12 to

the financial statements.)

The gross profit per-

centage (gross profit

500 divided by net sales)

decreased to 27.4% for

2001 as compared with
200

27.8% for 2000 due to

the reasons explained

previously. The corre-

sponding gross profit percentages for fluid technologies for

transportation and fluid technologies for industry (excluding

excess capacity) were 28.4% and 32.8% in 2001, respectively,

compared with 28.8% and 35.8% in 2000.

Selling and administrative expenses increased $9.4 million, or

6% ($6.7 million, or 4%, excluding acquisitions), in 2001 com-

pared with 2000. The non-acquisition increase was primarily

due to higher salary and employee benefit costs for existing

businesses and incremental staffing and other costs associat-

ed with our strategy to expand into new markets, partially

offset by lower legal expenses and favorable currency effects.

Research, testing and development expenses (technology

expenses) increased $7.7 million, or 5% ($6.9 million, or 5%,

excluding acquisitions), in 2001 compared with 2000. Product

standards change periodically to meet new emissions, effi-

ciency, durability and other performance factors as engine

and transmission designs are improved by equipment manu-

facturers. These changes influence the timing and amount of

technology expense. The increases during 2001 were due to

high levels of testing, primarily for GF-3, which is the new

U.S. passenger car motor oil technical standard, along with

increased development

spending for growth

S200 programs and product

development costs for

the next diesel engine

oil specification, PC-9.

We expect PC-9 testing

0 will continue at a high

pace in the first half of

2002. During 2001, approximately 76% of our technology

cost was incurred in company-owned facilities and 24% was

incurred at third-party testing facilities.

The change in revenues together with the change in total

costs and expenses had an unfavorable effect of $5.5 million

for 2001.

Unusual items for the year 2000 consisted of $19.4 million

for a litigation settlement gain and $4.5 million for favorable

adjustments to previously taken special charges related to the

100
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restructuring of the Painesville, Ohio, manufacturing facility.

(See "2000 Results of Operations.") There were no similar

items in 2001.

The change in other income (expense) had an unfavorable

effect of $1.0 million for 2001 as compared with 2000. Higher

currency exchange translation losses and increased goodwill

amortization expense were partially offset by higher equity

earnings from joint ventures and lower losses from the

disposal of assets. Goodwill amortization expense will be

eliminated in 2002 due to a change in accounting standards.

Our goodwill amortization expense in 2001 was $11.4 mil-

lion. (See Note 2 to the financial statements.)

Net interest expense was approximately the same in 2001

and 2000. Interest income decreased $1.8 million in 2001

compared with 2000 due to lower interest rates and lower

levels of cash investments during 2001. Interest expense also

decreased $1.8 million in 2001 compared with 2000, princi-

pally because of lower interest rates.

We conduct a significant amount of our business outside of

the U.S. and are subject to business risks inherent in non-

U.S. activities, including currency exchange rate fluctuations.

While changes in the dollar value of foreign currencies will

affect earnings from time to time, the longer-term economic

effect of these changes should not be significant given our

net asset exposure, currency mix and use of U.S. dollar-

based pricing in some countries. As the U.S. dollar strength-

ens or weakens against other international currencies in

which we transact business, our financial results will be

affected. During 2001, the U.S. dollar strengthened against

most other currencies, especially the euro and the yen, and

the change in currency exchange rates had an unfavorable

effect on net income as compared with exchange rates in

effect during 2000.

As a result of the factors previously discussed and after

excluding from 2000 the litigation settlement gain and adjust-

ments to special charges, 2001 income before taxes decreased

by $6.5 million, or 4%, compared with 2000. Including the

unusual items, income before income taxes decreased by

$30.4 million, or 18%, as compared with 2000. Segment

operating profit before tax, which excludes interest expense

and unusual items and allocates corporate technology, selling

and administrative expenses to the segments, increased $10.9

million, or 8%, for the fluid technologies for transportation

segment and decreased $17.4 million, or 75%, for the fluid

technologies for industry segment.

The effective tax rate on 2001 income was 32,7%, compared

with 29.6% on 2000 income, excluding the litigation settle-

ment gain and adjustments to special charges in 2000. The

increase in the effective tax rate, which decreased 2001 earn-

ings before these items by $.08 per share, was primarily due

to the U.S. tax benefit of a charitable contribution made in

2000, which did not recur in 2001. The overall effective tax

rate for 2000 including the special charge adjustments and the

litigation gain was 30.7%. Based upon the information cur-

rently available, we expect our effective tax rate for 2002 to

be reduced to approximately 30% as a result of enacted tax

rate reductions, the anticipated tax benefits of a charitable

contribution of technology and other factors.

Net income in 2001 was $94.1 million, or $1.84 per share. In

2000, net income was $118.0 million, or $2.22 per share.

After excluding from 2000 income the litigation settlement

gain and the adjustments to special charges, 2001 net income

decreased 9% compared with 2000 net income of $103.1 mil-

lion. On this same basis, 2001 net income per share

decreased 5% from the 2000 net income per share of $1.94.

2000 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In 2000, our results reflected the challenging economic and

competitive conditions within our industry. We experienced

significant increases in raw material costs that we did not

fully recover despite a series of product price increases and

we were unfavorably affected by the stronger U.S. dollar.

These factors caused our gross profit and gross profit percent-

age to decline. Although we benefited from lower operating

expenses, unusual items and a lower effective tax rate, 2000

earnings were lower than the prior year's earnings.

Our consolidated revenues for 2000 were $1.78 billion,

which was a decrease of $4.5 million, or less than 1%, from

1999 revenues. Excluding acquisitions, the decrease was

$26.9 million, or 2%. The revenue decrease was attributable

to a reduction in our shipment volume, which decreased 1%

from the prior year (2% excluding acquisitions). Higher prod-

uct selling prices in 2000 were completely offset by product

and regional mix effects and a significant negative impact

from the stronger U.S. dollar. Fluid technologies for trans-

portation revenues decreased $16.7 million, or 1%, compared

with 1999 primarily due to a decrease in shipment volume.

Fluid technologies for industry revenues increased $12.2 mil-

lion, or 4%, over 1999 primarily due to an acquisition that

offset some business losses in our industrial product group,

and stronger volume in our compressor lubricant business.

Changes in our shipment volume vary in different geographi-

cal areas. The percentage changes in our 2000 shipment vol-

ume by geographical area, as compared with 1999, are:

Increase
(Decrease)

North America (4%)

Europe, Middle East (3%)

Asia-Pacific 9%

Latin America 9%

We believe 1999 results benefited from advance customer

purchases in late 1999 related to "Year 2000" concerns and an

announced price increase. The weakness in North America



THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

also reflected the timing of some passenger car business shift-

ing from late 2000 into the first quarter of 2001 and a decline

in driveline factory-fill volumes resulting from automobile

and diesel truck production slowdowns. We lost some busi-

riess at smaller accounts in Europe due to recent price

increases. The favorable comparisons in Asia-Pacific and

Latin America primarily were due to business gains mostly

related to our new heavy-duty diesel platform and sales by

our new subsidiaries in China.

Cost of sales for 2000, including acquisitions, increased 4%

from 1999, reflecting higher average raw material cost par-

tially offset by lower manufacturing cost. The prices we paid

for raw materials increased every quarter throughout 2000

due to the impact of higher crude oil costs on petrochemical

prices, and as a result, our average raw material cost

increased 9% compared with 1999. We implemented three

price increases in 2000, but they did not fully recover the

higher raw material costs and we began a fourth price

increase, which was announced in November 2000. In addi-

tion, our average raw material cost was further affected in

2001 by increases in natural gas prices.

Manufacturing costs, which are included in cost of sales,

decreased 6% (8% excluding acquisitions) in 2000 compared

with 1999. Approximately two-thirds of this decrease was

due to the favorable impact of currency. Manufacturing sav-

ings also resulted from the full integration of our Adibis

business, which we purchased in 1998, and the cost reduc-

tion program at our Painesville plant.

Gross profit (net sales less cost of sales) decreased $55.5

million, or 10% ($62.0 million, or 11%, excluding acquisi-

tions), in 2000 compared with 1999. The decrease primarily

was due to the impact of higher raw material costs partially

offset by product price increases and lower manufacturing

costs. Additionally, approximately $18 million of the

decrease in gross profit was due to the impact of unfavorable

changes in currency exchange rates. In calculating gross profit

at the operating segment level we exclude excess production

capacity from product costs. (See Note 12 to the financial

statements.) On that basis, fluid technologies for transporta-

tion gross profit decreased $61.1 million, or 13%, in 2000

compared with 1999 due to the same factors noted above.

Fluid technologies for industry gross profit decreased $1.0

million, or 1%, in 2000 compared with 1999. Excluding the

Alox acquisition, this gross profit decreased $7.0 million, or

6%, primarily due to business losses in our industrial prod--
ucts group.

The gross profit percentage (gross profit divided by net sales)

decreased to 27.8% for 2000 as compared with 30.9% for

1999 due to the reasons explained above. The gross profit

percentages for fluid technologies for transportation and fluid

technologies for industry were 28.8% and 35.8%, respec-

tively, compared with 32.4% and 37.4% in 1999.

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $13.3 million,

or 7%, in 2000 compared with 1999 ($14.4 million, or 8%,

excluding acquisitions) due to lower variable compensation

costs, lower implementation costs for our enterprise-wide

management information system, lower legal expenses and

favorable currency effects.

Research, testing and development expenses (technology

expenses) increased $4.9 million, or 3%, in 2000 compared

with 1999. During 2000, approximately 80% of our technol-

ogy cost was incurred in Lubrizol-owned facilities and 20%

was incurred at third-party testing facilities. Our technology

expenses were favorably affected in the first half of the year

because of lower activity at third-party testing facilities in the

first quarter of the year, resulting in part from an industry

delay in finalizing specifications for the U.S. passenger car

motor oil technical standard GF-3. Once these specification

issues were resolved, we began related testing in the third

quarter of 2000, which resulted in technology costs being

12% higher in the second half than in the first half of 2000.

Primarily as a result of the factors previously discussed, the

change in revenues together with the change in total costs

and expenses unfavorably affected our pre-tax profits by

$47.1 million for 2000 compared with 1999.

During 2000, we recorded adjustments relating to our

Painesville cost reduction program to reduce the special

charge accrual by $4.5 million ($2.9 million after-tax or $.05

per share). These adjustments to the special charge are dis-

cussed under the caption "Cost Reduction Programs and

Related Special Charges below and in Note 15 to the finan-

cial statements.

On October 12, 2000, we reached a settlement of pending

patent litigation with Imperial Oil Limited (Imperial), a

Canadian affiliate of Exxon Mobil Corporation. Under the

settlement agreement, Imperial paid us $25.0 million in Octo-

ber 2000. After deducting related expenses, this settlement

increased pre-tax income by $19.4 million ($12.0 million

after-tax, or $.23 per share). We also entered into a ten-year

agreement for the supply of $490 million (Canadian dollars)

of product to Imperial. Further information regarding our

litigation with Exxon Mobil Corporation is contained in

Note 16 to the financial statements.

The change in other income (expense) unfavorably affected

2000 pre-tax income by $7.4 million compared with 1999. The

change primarily resulted from lower equity earnings of affil-

iated companies and losses on miscellaneous sales of assets.

Net interest expense decreased $3.6 million in 2000 com-

pared with 1999 principally because of lower interest rates

due to interest rate swap agreements entered into in the first

half of 2000.
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As the U.S. dollar strengthens or weakens against other inter-

national currencies in which we transact business, our financial

results will be affected. During 2000 the U.S. dollar strength-

ened against most other currencies, especially the euro and

British pound sterling, and the change in currency exchange

rates had an unfavorable effect on net income for the year as

compared with exchange rates in effect during 1999.

As a result of the factors discussed above, income before

income taxes decreased by $25.0 million, or 13%, as com-

pared with 1999. After excluding from both years the special

charges and the gains from litigation settlements, income

before income taxes decreased by $50.8 million, or 26%,

compared with 1999. Segment operating profit before tax,

which excludes interest expense, decreased $51.5 million, or

27%, for fluid technologies for transportation, and decreased

$2.9 million, or 11%, for fluid technologies for industry, as

compared with 1999.

The effective tax rate on 2000 income, before litigation gains

and special charges, decreased to 29.6% as compared with

36.5% in 1999. This decrease, which increased 2000 earnings

before these items by $.19 per share, primarily was due to

the U.S. tax benefit from charitable contributions of technol-

ogy to an educational institution, the favorable impact

of statutory tax rate changes for certain of our foreign

subsidiaries and an increase in the U.S. Foreign Sales Corp-

oration tax benefit on export sales. The overall effective tax

rate for 2000 including the special charge adjustments and

the litigation gain was 30.7%.

Net income in 2000 was $118.0 million, or $2.22 per share. In

1999, net income was $123.0 million, or $2.25 per share.

After excluding from 2000 and 1999 the special charges and

the gains from litigation settlements, net income in 2000 was

$103.1 million, as compared with $125.3 million in 1999, a

decrease of 18%. On this same basis, 2000 net income per

share was $1.94, a decrease of 16% from the $2.30 per share

earned in 1999.

1999 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In 1999, our consolidated revenues were $1.78 billion, which

represented an increase of $130.1 million, or 8% (3% exclud-

ing acquisitions), as compared with 1998. The primary factor

causing the increase in revenues from 1998 was a 9%

increase in our shipment volume (5% excluding acquisitions).

Our average selling price declined 2% as compared with

1998, all of which was due to lower product pricing and

changing product mix. Fluid technologies for transportation

revenues increased $87.6 million, or 6%, over 1998. Approxi-

mately two-thirds of the increase was due to our 1998 acqui-

sition of Aclibis. Fluid technologies for industry revenues

increased $42.5 million, or 16%, over 1998. Approximately

one-half of the increase was due to acquisitions, primarily

our acquisition of Carroll Scientific, Inc.

The increase in 1999 shipment volume, excluding acquisi-

tions, was attributable to North America and Asia Pacific.

Shipment volume to North American customers increased

13% primarily due to new business awarded at the end of

1998 and in 1999. Shipments to Asia-Pacific customers in

1999, excluding acquisitions, increased 14% compared with

1998 primarily due to the economic improvement in the

region. Shipments to European and Latin American cus-

tomers in 1999, excluding acquisitions, decreased 4% and

10% respectively, due primarily to sluggish economies with

some business loss. We believe 1999 results benefited from

some advance buying in late 1999 related to "Year 2000" con-

cerns, and customer purchases in advance of an announced

price increase.

Cost of sales for 1999, including acquisitions, increased 5%

reflecting higher shipment levels partially offset by lower

average raw material cost compared with 1998. On a sequen-

tial basis, we experienced a 4% increase in average raw

material cost during the third quarter and an additional 2%

increase during the fourth quarter, as a result of higher crude

oil pricing and its downstream effect. In November 1999, we

announced a global price increase ranging from 3% to 7%

depending on the product group, to recover the increasing

raw material cost. The price increase, which was effective

December 15, 1999, was successful and resulted in an aver-

age increase of 4% to 4.5%. We began to see the impact on

revenues in the first quarter of 2000, and the full impact was

felt by the end of the second quarter. Manufacturing costs,

included in cost of sales, increased 7% (3% excluding acquisi-

tions) in 1999 compared with 1998.

Gross profit (net sales less cost of sales) increased $67.4 mil-

lion, or 14%, in 1999 compared with 1998. Excluding acquisi-

tions, gross profit increased $50.3 million, or 10%, in 1999

compared with 1998. Most of the increase was due to higher

volume and the impact of lower average raw material cost

partially offset by lower average selling price. Additionally,

$10.0 million of the increased gross profit was due to the

impact on cost of sales of favorable changes in currency

exchange rates. Fluid technologies for transportation gross

profit increased $53.6 million, or 13%, and fluid technologies

for industry gross profit increased $13.7 million, or 14%.

Acquisitions accounted for one-fourth of the fluid technolo-

gies for transportation increase and one-half of the fluid

technologies for industry increase, and the remainder was

due to the factors noted above.

The gross profit percentage (gross profit divided by net sales)

improved to 30.9% for 1999 as compared with 29.2% for

1998 for the same reasons as discussed above. In addition,

the 1998 gross profit percentage was unusually low as

explained in the discussion of 1998 results of operations.
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The gross profit percentages for fluid technologies for trans-

portation and fluid technologies for industry were 32.4%

and 37.4%, respectively, compared with 30.6% and 38.3%

in 1998.

Selling and administrative expenses increased by $1.5 million,

or 1%, in 1999 compared with 1998. Excluding acquisitions,

selling and administrative expenses decreased $4.4 million, or

2%, in 1999 due to lower legal expenses, efficiencies from

the integration of Adibis, lower pension costs, reduced

spending on our global enterprise-wide management infor-

mation system and favorable currency effects. These factors

were partially offset by higher variable pay and costs associ-

ated with "Year 2000" compliance activities.

Research, testing and development expenses (technology

expenses) decreased $5.1 million, or 3%, in 1999 compared

with 1998. Excluding acquisitions, technology expenses

decreased $8.3 million, or 6%. During 1999, approximately

80% of our technology cost was incurred in company-owned

facilities and 20% was incurred at third-party testing facili-

ties. The reduction in technology expenses was achieved, in

part, by reduced spending in 1999 for engine tests conducted

at third-party facilities. In addition, an industry delay in the

effective date of the new U.S. passenger car motor oil techni-

cal standard, GF-3, resulted in a deferral of related testing

activities. This delay, along with savings generated from the

first phase of our cost reduction program implemented in late

1998, also contributed to lower technical expenses in 1999

compared with 1998.

Primarily as a result of the factors previously discussed, con-

solidated revenues increased $72.0 million more than the

increase in total costs and expenses in 1999.

We recorded special charges for the year of $19.6 million

($13.2 million after-tax or $.24 per share) relating to both pro-

grams of our cost reduction initiative. These special charges

are discussed under the caption "Cost Reduction Programs

and Related Special Charges" below and in Note 15 to the

financial statements.

On March 31, 1999, Lubrizol and Exxon Corporation reached

a settlement of all pending intellectual property litigation

between the two companies and their affiliates, except for

litigation that was pending in Canada. Under the settlement

agreement, Exxon paid us cash of $16.8 million in April 1999.

After deducting related expenses, this settlement increased

1999 pre-tax income by $14.5 million ($9.0 million after-tax

or $.16 per share). Further information regarding our litiga-

tion with Exxon is contained in Note 16 to the financial state-

ments. Additionally, we recorded a pre-tax gain of $3.1 mil-

lion ($1.9 million after-tax or $.04 per share) in the fourth

quarter for the settlement of litigation unrelated to Exxon.

The change in other income (expense) unfavorably affected

1999 pre-tax income by $5.6 million compared with 1998.

The change resulted primarily from higher goodwill amorti-

zation related to acquisitions made in the second half of

1998, and higher currency translation and transaction losses,

principally in Brazil, partially offset by higher equity earnings

of affiliated companies.

Net interest expense increased $8.6 million in 1999 compared

with 1998, principally because of higher borrowings necessi-

tated by the acquisitions made during the second half of 1998

and 1998 share repurchases.

As the U.S. dollar strengthens or weakens against other

international currencies in which we transact business, our

financial results will be affected. Changes in currency

exchange rates during 1999 had a favorable effect on net

income as compared with exchange rates in effect during

1998. This was primarily a result of the weakening of the

U.S. dollar against the Japanese yen, partially offset by a

strengthening of the U.S. dollar against the pound sterling

and other currencies.

As a result of the factors discussed above, income before

income taxes increased by $76.5 million or 64% over 1998.

After excluding from both years the special charges and the

gains from litigation settlements, income before income taxes

increased by $57.8 million, or 41%, over 1998. Segment

operating profit before tax, which excludes interest expense,

increased $61.5 million, or 47%, for fluid technologies for

transportation, and increased $4.9 million, or 22%, for fluid

technologies for industry, as compared with 1998.

The effective tax rate on 1999 income, before litigation gains

and special charges, decreased to 36.5% as compared with

38.0% in 1998. This decrease, which increased 1999 earnings

before these items by $.05 per share, was primarily due to

improvement in the profitability of certain foreign sub-

sidiaries with loss carryforwards, a reduction in the amount

of non-deductible translation losses at certain foreign sub-

sidiaries and a significant increase in pre-tax profit which

diluted the effect of non-deductible items.

Net income in 1999 was $123.0 million, or $2.25 per share. In

1998, net income was $71.2 million, or $1.27 per share. After

excluding from 1999 and 1998 the special charges and the

gains from litigation settlements, net income in 1999 was

$125.3 million, as compared with $86.5 million in 1998, an

increase of 45%. On . this same basis, 1999 net income per

share was $2.30, an increase of 48% from the $1.55 per share

earned in 1998.
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COST REDUCTION PROGRAMS AND

RELATED SPECIAL CHARGES

We have completed the cost reduction programs initiated in

November 1998 to reduce costs and improve our operating

structure. The first program, which was completed by the

end of 1999, included the reorganization of our commercial

structure, changes in work processes using our new globally

integrated management information system, the shutdown

of some production units and the consolidation of some

facilities and offices. We have achieved annual savings of

approximately $28 million related to this first program. The

second program, which was completed by the end of 2000,

involved primarily the downsizing of our Painesville, Ohio,

manufacturing facility. We achieved approximately $19 mil-

lion of savings in 2001 from the second program. (See also

Note 15 to the financial statements.)

The first program, which began in the fourth quarter of 1998,

resulted in the reduction of approximately 7% of our work-

force, or 300 employees, at both domestic and international

locations. Approximately 55% of this reduction occurred by

December 31, 1998, a further 35% occurred in the first quar-

ter of 1999, and the remainder was substantially completed

by the end of the third quarter of 1999. Of the 300 employ-

ees, approximately 40% were in the manufacturing area and

60% were in the selling, administrative, research and testing

areas. In addition, we permanently removed seven compo-

nent production units from service during this first program.

We recorded a special charge of $23.3 million in the fourth

quarter of 1998 for the cost directly associated with this first

program. In the first quarter of 1999, we recognized addition-

al expense of $3.1 million ($2.9 million after-tax or $.05 per

share) to reflect a greater amount for separation benefits,

principally in Japan. In the fourth quarter of 1999, an adjust-

ment was made to reduce the special charge by $4.3 million

($2.5 million after-tax or $.05 per share) to reflect the settle-

ment gain recorded as a result of settling employee pension

obligations and other accrual adjustments. As adjusted,

employee severance costs approximated $20.0 million of the

total charge of $22.1 million and other exit costs approxi-

mated $2.1 million, virtually all of which related to asset

impairments For component production units taken out of

service. We spent approximately $.4 million, $14.7 million

and $5.0 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively, related

to this program.

The second program, which began in the third quarter of 1999,

resulted in the additional reduction of approximately 5% of

our workforce, or 187 employees, and the shutdown of 20 of

Painesville's 36 production systems. The Painesville plant con-

tinues to operate as a producer of small-volume specialized

intermediates and as a blender of certain additive packages.

We recorded a special charge of $20.8 million in the third

quarter of 1999 relating to this second program. In the second

quarter of 2000, we recorded a pre-tax adjustment of $2.6

million ($1.7 million after-tax or $.03 per share) to reduce the

amount of the special charge. The cost of workforce reduc-

tions at Painesville was less than originally anticipated

because of an increase in the planned number of employees

due to the assumption of Alox production, retention of a

waste incineration process and higher than expected

throughput. We also eliminated a number of positions with-

out severance pay cost through the transfer of employees to

other facilities outside of Painesville. In the fourth quarter

of 2000, we recorded a pre-tax adjustment of $1.9 million

($1.2 million after-tax or $.02 per share) to reduce further the

amount of the special charge due to lower than anticipated

equipment dismantling costs ($1.5 million) and lower work-

force reduction costs ($.4 million) because additional employ-

ees transferred to other Lubrizol locations. As adjusted,

employee severance costs were $5.5 million of the charge

and other exit costs were $10.8 million, including $7.4 mil-

lion related to asset impairment for component production

units taken out of service. We spent approximately $1.8 mil-

lion, $.9 million and $1.3 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999,

respectively, related to this program. Additionally, we have

spent approximately $6.8 million of capital to transfer a por-

tion of the Painesville capacity to our Texas facilities.

RETURN ON AVERAGE SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Return on average shareholders' equity was 12% in 2001,

15% in 2000 and 16% in 1999 (12%, 13% and 16%, respec-

tively, excluding litiga-

charges and credits).
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WORKING CAPITAL, LIQUIDITY AND

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our cash flows for the years 1999 through 2001 are pre-

sented in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Cash

provided from operating activities decreased by $30.3 mil-

lion, or 13%, compared with 2000, to a total of $195.8 mil-

lion in 2001. This decrease primarily was due to lower earn-

ings significantly impacted by the non-recurrence in 2001 of

the litigation settlement

gain as well as an $8.5

million increase in

working capital items

in 2001 compared with

a $2.0 million increase

in working capital

items in 2000.

Capital expenditures in 2001 were $66.3 million compared

with $85.8 million in 2000. The lower level of capital expen-

ditures in 2001 is primarily due to the timing of various envi-

RETURN ON EQUITY (PERCENT)
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ronmental and process improvement projects. Prior-year

expenditures included capital spent to transfer capacity from

our Painesville to our Texas facilities as part of our cost reduc-

tion program, which was completed in 2000. Capital expendi-

tikes have been below depreciation expense in each of the

past three years. In 2002, we estimate expenditures will

approximate depreciation expense and be in the range of $85

million to $90 million.

In 2001 we spent $14.7 million on an acquisition to purchase

ROSS Chem, Inc., a manufacturer and supplier of antifoam

and defoaming agents, with annual sales of $10 million, that

expanded our product lines in metalworking and paints, coat-

ings and inks. We spent $35.7 million on two acquisitions in

2000 in which we purchased certain production assets and

working capital of Alox Corporation, a supplier of additives

for corrosion prevention in metalworking products, and

acquired an additional 10% interest in our India joint ven-

ture, increasing our ownership interest to 50%. We also

made a $5.0 million investment in 2000 in a joint venture

with GE Transportation Systems. We made one acquisition

in 1999 for $1.9 million.

In 2001, we dissolved our joint venture with GE Transporta-

tion Systems and replaced the joint venture with separate

cross-licensing agreements. We have entered into a technical

services agreement to license our FluiPak Tm technology (i.e.,

fluid management technology for use in monitoring fluids in

machines and services) for railroad applications to GE Trans-

portation Systems. This is expected to result in an additional

royalty stream beginning in 2003, after design changes are

made to the FluiPak unit.

In the first quarter of 2002, we completed one acquisition

and signed a definitive agreement for a second acquisition for

a total estimated cost of $71 million. In January 2002, we

acquired Kabo Unlimited, Inc., which specializes in the

development, manufacture and sale of antifoam and defoam-

ing agents to the food, fermentation, mining and wastewater

industries. Kabo's product lines expand the defoamer offering

and capabilities of our fluid technologies for industry busi-

ness. In January 2002, we signed a definitive agreement to

acquire Chemron Corporation, a supplier of specialty surfac-

tants. This acquisition, upon completion, would extend our

business into high-growth surfactants markets, including

personal care products and industrial and institutional

cleaners, in which we currently do not compete. During

2001, the annual revenues of Kabo and Chemron were—
approximately $14 million and $55 million, respectively.

Our net debt to capitalization ratio at December 31, 2001,

was 23%, compared with 28% at December 31, 2000, due

to strong net operating cash flow in 2001 and the comple-

tion of only one acquisition during the year. Net  debt is the

total of short- and long-term debt, reduced by cash and

short-term investments in excess of an assumed operating

cash level of $40 million and excluding unrealized gains and

losses on derivative
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debt. Debt as a percent

of capitalization, with-
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and derivative instruments, was 34% in both 2001 and 2000.

During the first half of 2001, we repurchased approximately

1.0 million common shares for $30.0 million dollars. During

2000 we repurchased 3.2 million shares for $76.0 million and

in 1999 we repurchased approximately 140,000 shares for

$4.2 million.

Our financial position remains strong with a ratio of current

assets to current liabilities of 2.9:1 at December 31, 2001,

compared with 2.6:1 at December 31, 2000. In July 2001, we

increased our committed revolving credit facilities to $575

million by adding $525 million of new facilities and canceling

$100 million in existing facilities due to expire in June 2003.

These credit facilities may be used for working capital

requirements, capital expenditures, acquisitions or other

corporate purposes and also to support commercial paper

borrowings made under our $525 million commercial paper

program. There were no borrowings under these credit

facilities at December 31, 2001. These facilities allow us to

borrow at or below the U.S. prime rate and expire in the

amount of $175 million on July 16, 2002, $50 million on June

30, 2003, and $350 million on July 16, 2006.

The following table shows our contractual cash obligations

(in millions of dollars) under debt agreements, leases and con-

tracts at December 31, 2001. Additional information on debt

and operating leases can be found in Notes 4 and 10 to the

financial statements.

Payments Due by Period

Less
Contractual Cash Than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
Obligations Total Year Years Years Years

Debt 	 $397.2 $ 9.1 $ 7.6 $50.0 $330.5

Operating Leases 49.3 12.5 15.6 9.2 12.0

Natural Gas
Purchase Contracts 	 5.9 5.9

Service Contracts	 .. 2.0 1.0 1.0

Total Contractual
Cash Obligations	 	 $454.4 $28.5 $24.2 $59.2 $342.5

In addition, we have contingent obligations aggregating

$12.4 million under standby letters of credit issued to finan-

cial institutions, customers and insurance companies to

secure short-term support for a variety of commercial trans-

actions and insurance and benefit programs undertaken in

the ordinary course of business. These standby letters of

credit expire in 2002.

97	 98	 99	 00	 01

Equity

Total Dol.
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We believe that our existing credit facilities, internally gener-

ated funds and ability to obtain additional financing, if

desired, will be sufficient to meet our future capital and

growth needs, including acquisitions to expand into new and

existing fluid technology markets. If we were to incur signifi-

cant additional indebtedness (for example, to make a large

acquisition) that caused a change in our current long-term

debt ratings, we would expect to be able to continue to meet

our liquidity needs but at some increased cost for interest and

commitment fees under our credit facilities. We do not

believe any such increased costs would have a material

impact upon our results of operations or financial condition.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND RECENT

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles requires us to make

assumptions and estimates regarding future events. These

assumptions and estimates affect the amounts reported in

our financial statements. Accounting policies for which our

subjective judgment is particularly important include estimat-

ing valuation reserves for slow moving or obsolete inventory,

estimating the cost of future environmental remediation

obligations in order to establish reserves, and providing

reserves For tax exposure in the various taxing jurisdictions

in which we conduct business. To the extent actual experi-

ence differs from our assumptions and estimates, we may

have to increase or decrease these reserves and earnings

could be affected.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard

(SFAS) 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" which

became effective for us on January 1, 2002. Under SEAS 142,

there is no goodwill amortization for business combinations

that occur after June 30, 2001 and amortization of goodwill

on pre-June 30, 2001 acquisitions ceased effective January 1,

2002. Goodwill amortization, which was $11.4 million in

2001, is replaced with a requirement to test goodwill annual-

ly for impairment. Our initial impairment test roust be com-

pleted by June 30, 2002. We have not determined the impact,

if any, that the initial goodwill impairment test will have on

our financial position or results of operations. We expect

acquisitions to play an important role in our future growth

strategy and accordingly expect SFAS 142 to be important to

the presentation of our financial condition and results of

operations. The annual goodwill impairment test will require

us to make a number of assumptions and estimates concern-

ing future levels of earnings and cash flow and any impair-

ment of goodwill will reduce earnings.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 143, "Accounting For

Asset Retirement Obligations" which will become effective

for us on January 1, 2003. This statement requires entities to

record a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the

period in which it is incurred. The amount recorded as a lia-

bility is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the

related long-lived asset, which is then depreciated over its

useful life. We have not determined the impact, if any,

that SFAS 143 will have on our financial position or

results of operations.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR "SAFE HARBOR"

PURPOSES UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES

LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and the letter "To Our

Shareholders" from W. G. Bares, Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer of Lubrizol, contain forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws.

As a general matter, forward-looking statements are those

focused upon future plans, objectives or performance as

opposed to historical items and include statements of antici-

pated events or trends and expectations and beliefs relating to

matters not historical in nature. Forward-looking statements

are subject to uncertainties and factors relating to our opera-

tions and business environment, all of which are difficult to

predict and many of which are beyond our control. These

uncertainties and factors could cause our actual results to

differ materially from those matters expressed in or implied

by any forward-looking statements.

We believe that the following factors, among others, could

affect our future performance and cause our actual results to

differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-

looking statements made in this annual report:

• the overall demand for lubricant and fuel additives on a

worldwide basis, which has a slow growth rate in mature

markets such as North America and Europe;

• the effect on our business resulting from economic and

political uncertainty within the Asia-Pacific and Latin

American regions:

• the lubricant additive demand in developing regions such as

China and India, which geographic areas are an announced

focus of our activities;

• the potential negative impact on product pricing and vol-

ume demand from the consolidation of finished lubricant

marketers;

• the degree of competition resulting from lubricant additive

industry over capacity;

• technology developments that affect longer-term trends for

lubricant additives, such as improved equipment design,

fuel economy, longer oil drain intervals, alternative fuel

powered engines and emission system compatibility;

• the overall economic uncertainty and weak business envi-

ronment within the global economy, which is affecting

fluid technologies for industry in particular;
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•

• the extent to which we are successful in expanding our

business in new and existing fluid technology markets

incorporating chemicals, systems and services for industry

and transportation;

• our ability to identify, complete and integrate acquisitions

for profitable growth;

• our success at continuing to develop proprietary technology

to meet or exceed new industry performance standards and

individual customer and original equipment manufacturers'

expectations;

• the frequency of change in industry performance standards,

which affects the level and timing of our technology costs,

the product life cycles and the relative quantity of additives

required for new specifications;

• our ability to continue to reduce complexities and conver-

sion costs and modify our cost structure to maintain and

enhance our competitiveness;

• our success in strengthening relationships and growing

business with our largest customers, and retaining the busi-

ness of these customers over extended time periods;

• the cost, availability and quality of raw materials, including

petroleum-based products;

• the cost and availability of energy, including natural gas

and electricity;

• the effects of fluctuations in currency exchange rates upon

our reported results from international operations, together

with non-currency risks of investing in and conducting sig-

nificant operations in foreign countries, including those

relating to political, social, economic and regulatory factors;

• the extent to which we achieve market acceptance of our

PuriNOxIm low-emission, water-blend fuel product;

• significant changes in government regulations affecting

environmental compliance.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

ABOUT MARKET RISK

We operate manufacturing and blending facilities, labora-

tories and offices around the world and utilize fixed and

floating rate debt to finance our global operations. As a result,

we are subject to business risks inherent in non-U.S. activi-

ties, including political and economic uncertainty, import and

export limitations and market risk related to changes in

interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We believe

the political and economic risks related to our foreign opera

tions are mitigated due to the stability of the countries in

which our largest foreign operations are located.

In the normal course of business, we use derivative financial

instruments including interest rate swaps and foreign cur-

rency forward exchange contracts to manage our market

risks. Additional information regarding our financial instru-

ments is contained in Notes 4 and 13 to the financial state-

ments. Our objective in managing our exposure to changes in

interest rates is to limit the impact of such changes on our

earnings and cash flow and to lower our overall borrowing

costs. Our objective in managing the exposure to changes in

foreign currency exchange rates is to reduce volatility on our

earnings and cash flow associated with such changes. Our

principal currency exposures are in the major European cur-

rencies, the Japanese yen and certain Latin American curren-

cies. We do not hold derivatives for trading purposes.

We measure our market risk related to our holdings of finan-

cial instruments based on changes in interest rates and foreign

currency rates utilizing a sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity

analysis measures the potential loss in fair values, cash flows

and earnings based on a hypothetical 10% change (increase

and decrease) in interest and currency exchange rates. We

used current market rates on our debt and derivative port-

folio to perform the sensitivity analysis. Certain items such

as lease contracts, insurance contracts and obligations for

pension and other post-retirement benefits were not included

in the analysis.

Our primary interest rate exposures relate to our cash and

short-term investments, fixed and variable rate debt and

interest rate swaps. The calculation of potential loss in fair

values is based on an immediate change in the net present

values of our interest rate-sensitive exposures resulting from

a 10% change in interest rates. The potential loss in cash

flows and income before tax is based on the change in the

net interest income/expense over a one-year period due to an

immediate 10% change in rates. A hypothetical 10% change

in interest rates would have had a favorable/unfavorable

impact on fair values of $20.2 million, cash flows of $1.0 mil-

lion and income before tax of $1.0 million in 2001, and $22.4

million, $1.2 million and $1.2 million in 2000, respectively.

Our primary currency rate exposures are to foreign denomi-

nated debt, intercompany debt, cash and short-term invest-

ments and foreign currency forward exchange contracts. The

calculation of potential loss in fair values is based on an

immediate change in the U.S. dollar equivalent balances of

our currency exposures due to a 10% shift in exchange rates.

The potential loss in cash flows and income before tax is

based on the change in cash flow and income before tax

over a one-year period resulting from an immediate 10%

change in currency exchange rates. A hypothetical 10%

change in currency exchange rates would have had a favor-

able/unfavorable impact on fair values of $7.4 million, cash

flows of $13.3 million and income before tax of $3.7 million

in 2001, and $7.8 million, $16.4 million and $5.3 million in

2000, respectively.



March 31

2001
Net sales 	
Gross profit 	
Net income 	
Net income per share 	
Net income per share, diluted 	

2000
Net sales 	
Gross profit 	
Net income 	
Net income per share 	
Net income per share, diluted 	

$453,791
119,109

18,506
$.36
$.36

$444,008
127,326
30,105

$.55
$.55

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT Deloitte
&Touche

THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended

June 30	 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

(In Thousands of Dollars Except Per Share Data)

$485,928 $461,109 $438,416

135,926 128,222 120,526

32,015 22,797 20,798

$.63 $.45 $.41

$ 62 $.44 $.40

$448,979 $432,442 $445,888

129,848 121,624 114,332

31,712 23,255 32,937

$.59 $.44 $.64
$.59 $.44 $.63

In the second quarter of 2000, the company recorded a pre-

tax adjustment of $2.6 million ($.03 per share) to reduce the

amount of the special charge to reflect a lower cost of work-

force reductions than was anticipated.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the company recorded a pre-

tax adjustment of $1.9 million ($.02 per share) to further

reduce the amount of the special charge due to lower-than-

anticipated equipment dismantling costs ($1.5 million) and

lower workforce reduction costs ($.4 million) because addi-

tional employees transferred to other company locations.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the company recorded a

pre-tax gain from litigation settlement of $19.4 million ($.23

per share).

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of The Lubrizol Corporation and its subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the related consolidated

statements of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan-

dards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evalu-

ating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements pre-

sent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

The Lubrizol Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31,

2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

Cleveland, Ohio

February 4, 2002



THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In Thousands of Dollars Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31

2001 2000 1999

Net sales 	 $1,839,244 $1,771,317 $1,775,867

Royalties and other revenues	 	 5,400 4,463 4,462

Total revenues 	 1,844,644 1,775,780 1,780,329

Cost of sales 	 1,335,461 1,278,187 1,227,271

Selling and administrative expenses	 	 177,431 167,999 181,292

Research, testing and development expenses 	 158,473 150,805 145,927

Total cost and expenses 	 1,671,365 1,596,991 1,554,490

Special (charges) credits	 	 4,484 (19,569)

Gain from litigation settlements	 	 19,395 17,626

Other income (expense) — net 	 	 (15,076) (14,062) (6,704)

Interest income 	 6,787 8,611 7,854

Interest expense	 	 (25,041) (26,869) (29,696)

Income before income taxes 	 139,949 170,348 195,350

Provision for income taxes	 	 45,833 52,339 72,358

Net income 	 $	 94,116 $	 118,009 $	 122,992

Net income per share 	 $1.84 $2.22 $2.25

Net income per share, diluted 	 $1.83 $2.22 $2.25

Dividends per share	 	 $1.04 $1.04 $1.04

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Thousands of Dollars)

December 31

2001 2000

ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments 	 $	 189,095 $	 145,937

Receivables 	 279,013 290,556

Inventories	 	 254,610 260,133

Other current assets 	 34,006 31,282

Total current assets	 	 756,724 727,908

Property and equipment - at cost 	 1,648,096 1,641,046

Less accumulated depreciation 	 1,003,815 963,804

Property and equipment - net 	 644,281 677,242

Goodwill and intangible assets - net 	 166,558 170,593

Investments in non-consolidated companies 	 30,915 34,247

Other assets 	 63,841 49,500

TOTAL 	 $1,662,319 $1,659,490

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 	 $	 9,120 $	 17,152

Accounts payable 	 129,833 141,574

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 	 120,261 123,520

Total current liabilities	 	 259,214 282,246

Long-term debt	 	 388,111 378,783

Postretirement health care obligation 	 	 97,878 100,275

Noncurrent liabilities 	 55,140 52,821

Deferred income taxes 	 56,207 60,614

Total liabilities	 	 856,550 874,739

Minority interest in consolidated companies 	 32,577 32,470

Contingencies and commitments

Preferred stock without par value - unissued

Common shares without par value - outstanding 51,152,107 shares in 2001
and 51,307,688 shares in 2000	 	 109,692 82,128

Retained earnings 	 763,312 750,779

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 	 (99,812) (80,626)

Total shareholders' equity 	 	 773,192 752,281

TOTAL 	 $1,662,319 $1,659,490

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

z Year Ended December 31

On Thousands of Dollars) 2001 2000 1999

CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR):

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income 	 $	 94,116 $ 118,009 $ 122,992

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 	 98,832 100,834 99,720

Deferred income taxes 	 (2,392) 7,799 1,312

Special charges (credits) 	 (4,484) 19,569

Change in current assets and liabilities net of acquisitions:

Receivables 	 2,217 542 (10,749)

Inventories	 	 866 (6,124) 13,500

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other current liabilities	 	 (8,399) 2,981 28,408

Other current assets	 	 (3,171) 582 19,052

(8,487) (2,019) 50,211

Change in noncurrent liabilities 	 	 4,740 1,250 370

Other items - net 	 9,029 4,775 (5,153)

Total operating activities	 	 195,838 226,164 289,021

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures 	 (66,316) (85,757) (64,872)

Acquisitions and investments in nonconsolidated companies. (14,989) (41,476) (1,923)

Other - net 	 (340) 1,997 2,246

Total investing activities	 	 (81,645) (125,236) (64,549)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Short-term borrowing (repayment) 	 (4,579) 4,099 (8,404)

Long-term borrowing 	 18,428 5,000

Long-term repayment 	 (3,120) (29,015) (24,447)

Debt issuance costs 	 (351)

Dividends paid	 	 (53,218) (55,370) (56,757)

Common shares purchased 	 (30,039) (75,957) (4,178)

Common shares issued upon exercise of stock options 	 22,294 1,310 1,553

Total financing activities 	 (68,662) (136,856) (87,233)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 	 	 (2,373) (3,600) (5,413)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investments . 43,158 (39,528) 131,826

Cash and short-term investments at the beginning of year .. 145,937 185,465 53,639

Cash and short-term investments at the end of year 	 $ 189,095 $ 145,937 $ 185,465

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Dollars in Thousands)

Number of
Shares

Outstanding

Shareholders' Equity

Common
Shares

Retained

Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998 	 54,548,110 $ 84,651 $709,994 $ (25,527) $769,118

Comprehensive income:

Net income 1999 	 122,992 122,992

Other comprehensive loss 	 (28,423) (28,423)

Comprehensive income 	 94,569

Cash dividends	 	 (70,938)* (70,938)

Common shares - treasury:

Shares purchased	 	 (139,600) (220) (3,958) (4,178)

Shares issued upon exercise of stock options 68,782 1,553 1,553

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 	 54,477,292 85,984 758,090 (53,950) 790,124

Comprehensive income:

Net income 2000 	 118,009 118,009

Other comprehensive loss 	 (26,676) (26,676)

Comprehensive income 	 91,333

Cash dividends	 	 (54,529) (54,529)

Common shares - treasury: 	

Shares purchased	 	 (3,232,096) (5,166) (70,791) (75,957)

Shares issued upon exercise of stock options 62,492 1,310 1,310

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 	 51,307,688 82,128 750,779 (80,626) 752,281

Comprehensive income:

Net income 2001	 	 94,116 94,116

Other comprehensive loss 	 (19,186) (19,186)

Comprehensive income 	 74,930

Cash dividends	 	 (53,206) (53,206)

Deferred stock compensation	 	 5,474 5,474

Common shares - treasury: 	

Shares purchased	 	 (967,610) (1,662) (28,377) (30,039)

Shares issued upon exercise of stock options 812,029 23,752 23,752

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2001 	 51,152,107 $109,692 $763,312 $ (99,812) $773,192

• Represents five dividends declared, of which lour were paid in 1999.

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In Thousands of Dollars Unless Otherwise Indicated)

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Lubrizol Corporation is a global fluid technology corn-

any that develops, produces and sells high-performance

chemicals, systems and services for industry and transporta-

tion. We create these products, including specialty additive

packages and related equipment, for use in transportation and

industrial lubricant and other markets. We do this by applying

advanced chemical and mechanical technologies in order to

enhance the performance, quality and value and reduce the

environmental impact of the customer products in which our

products are used. The company groups its product lines into

two operating segments: fluid technologies for transportation

and fluid technologies for industry. Fluid technologies for

transportation comprise approximately 83% of the com-

pany's consolidated revenues and 96% of segment pre-tax

operating profit in 2001. Refer to Note 12 for a further descrip-

tion of the nature of the company's operations, the product

lines within fluid technologies for transportation and fluid

technologies for industry and related financial disclosures.

NOTE 2 — ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CONSOLIDATION – The consolidated financial statements

include the accounts of The Lubrizol Corporation and its

subsidiaries where ownership is 50% or greater and the com-

pany has effective management control. For nonconsolidated

companies (affiliates), the equity method of accounting is

used when ownership, unless temporary, exceeds 20% and

when the company has the ability to exercise significant

influence over the policies of the investee. The book value of

investments carried at equity was $30.0 million and $32.7

million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Invest-

ments carried at cost were $.9 million and $1.5 million at

December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively.

ESTIMATES – The preparation of consolidated financial

statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires manage-

ment to make estimates and assumptions pending comple-

tion of related events. These estimates and assumptions

affect the amounts reported at the date of the consolidated

financial statements for assets, liabilities, revenues and

expenses and the disclosure of contingencies. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS – The company invests its excess

cash in short-term investments with various banks and finan-

cial institutions. Short-term investments are cash equivalents,

as they are part of the cash management activities of the

company and are comprised of investments having maturi-

ties of three months or fewer when purchased.

INVENTORIES – Inventories are stated at the lower of cost

or market value. Cost of inventories is determined by either

first-in, first-out (FIFO) method or moving average method,

except in the United States of America for chemical invento-

ries, which are primarily valued using the last-in, first-out

(LIFO) method.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT – Property and equipment

are carried at cost. Repair and maintenance costs are charged

against income while renewals and betterments are capital-

ized as additions to the related assets. Costs incurred for

computer software developed or obtained for internal use are

capitalized for application development activities and imme-

diately expensed for preliminary project activities or post-

implementation activities. Accelerated depreciation methods

are used in computing depreciation on certain machinery and

equipment, which comprise approximately 16% and 18% in

2001 and 2000, respectively, of the depreciable assets. The

remaining assets are depreciated using the straight-line

method. The estimated useful lives are 10 to 40 years for

buildings and land and building improvements and range

from 3 to 20 years for machinery and equipment.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS – Intangibles

resulting from business acquisitions including costs in excess

of net assets of businesses acquired (goodwill), purchased

technology and trademarks are being amortized on a

straight-line method over periods ranging from 5 to 25 years.

The recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets is evalu-

ated at the business unit level by analysis of operating results

and consideration of other significant events or changes in

the business environment. If a business unit has operating

losses and based upon projections there is a likelihood that

such operating losses will continue, the company will evalu-

ate whether impairment exists on the basis of undiscounted

expected future cash flows from operations before interest

for the remaining amortization period. When estimated

future discounted cash flows are less than the carrying

amount of the net assets (tangible and identifiable intangi-

bles) and related goodwill, impairment losses of goodwill

are charged to operations. Impairment losses, limited to the

carrying amount of goodwill, represent the excess of the sum

of the carrying amount of the net assets (tangible and identi-

fiable intangibles) and goodwill in excess of the discounted

cash flows of the business unit being evaluated.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(SFAS) 141, "Business Combinations," which prohibits the

pooling-of-interests method for business combinations com-

pleted after June 30, 2001 and includes criteria for recognition

of intangible assets separate from goodwill. The company

did not enter into any business combinations in the second

half of 2001.

In June 2001, the FASB also issued SFAS 142, "Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets," which became effective for the

company on January 1, 2002. Under the provisions of SFAS

142 there is no goodwill amortization for business combina-

tions that occur after June 30, 2001, and amortization of

goodwill on pre-June 30, 2001 acquisitions ceased effective

January 1, 2002. The Company's goodwill amortization

expense in 2001 was $11.4 million. Goodwill amortization is
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NOTES CONTINUED

replaced with the requirement to test goodwill annually for

impairment. The initial impairment test must be completed

within six months of adoption of the new standard. The

company has not determined the impact, if any, that the test

of goodwill for impairment will have on its consolidated

financial position or results of operations.

RESEARCH, TESTING AND DEVELOPMENT — Research,

testing and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Research and development expenses, excluding testing, were

$87.6 million in 2001, $86.4 million in 2000 and $78.3 million

in 1999.

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES — The company accrues for

expenses associated with environmental remediation obliga-

tions when such expenses are probable and reasonably

estimable. These accruals are adjusted as further information

develops or circumstances change. Costs of future expendi-

tures for environmental remediation obligations are not dis-

counted to their present value. The company's environmental

reserves totaled $9.5 million and $7.3 million at December

31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Of these amounts, $.5 mil-

lion and $1.0 million was included in other current liabilities

at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION —The assets and lia-

bilities of certain of the company's international subsidiaries

are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at

the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses are trans-

lated at weighted average exchange rates in effect during the

period. Unrealized translation adjustments are recorded as a

component of other comprehensive income in shareholders'

equity, except for subsidiaries for which the functional cur-

rency is the U.S. dollar, where translation adjustments are

realized in income. Transaction gains or losses that arise from

exchange rate changes on transactions denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency, except those

transactions that function as a hedge of an identifiable foreign

currency commitment or as a hedge of a foreign currency

investment, are included in income as incurred.

SHARE REPURCHASES — The company utilizes the par

value method of accounting for its treasury shares. Under this

method, the cost to reacquire shares in excess of paid-in capi-

tal related to those shares is charged against retained earnings.

REVENUE RECOGNITION — Revenues are recognized at

the time of shipment of products to customers, or at the time

of transfer of title if later, with appropriate provision for

uncollectible accounts. All amounts billed to a customer in

a sales transaction related to shipping and handling are

reported as revenues.

PER SHARE AMOUNTS — Net income per share is comput-

ed by dividing net income by average common shares out-

standing during the period, including contingently issuable

shares. Net income per diluted share includes the dilution

effect resulting from outstanding stock options and stock

awards. Per share amounts are computed as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Numerator:

Net income 	 $94,116 $118,009 $122,922

Denominator:

Weighted average
common shares
outstanding	 	 51,209 53,116 54,577

Dilutive effect of stock
options and awards 285 104 139

Denominator for net income
per share, diluted	 	 51,494 53,220 54,716

Net income per share 	 $	 1.84 $	 2.22 $	 2.25

Net income per share,
diluted	 	 $	 1.83 $	 2.22 $	 2.25

Weighted average shares issuable upon the exercise of stock

options which were excluded from the diluted earnings per

share calculation because they were antidilutive were 1.8

million in 2001, 3.8 million in 2000 and 3.1 million in 1999.

ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE INS 1 RUMENTS — Effec-

tive January 1, 2001, the company adopted SFAS 133,

"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-

ties," as amended by SFAS 138, "Accounting for Certain

Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities."

These statements require the company to recognize all deriv-

atives on the balance sheet at fair value and establish criteria

for designation and effectiveness of hedging relationships.

Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value

through income. Depending upon the nature of the hedge,

changes in fair value of the derivative are either offset against

the change in fair value of assets, liabilities or firm commit-

ments through earnings or recognized in other comprehen-

sive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings.

The ineffective portion of a derivative's change in value is

immediately recognized in earnings. The company uses

derivative financial instruments only to manage well-defined

interest rate and foreign currency risks. The company does

not use derivatives for trading purposes. The adoption of

these statements did not have a material cumulative effect on

net income as of Januaty 1, 2001, but did result in a $2.0 mil-

lion reduction ($1.3 million net of tax) of other comprehen-

sive income (See notes 6 and 13).

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS — In June 2001, the

FASB issued SFAS 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement

Obligations," which will become effective for the company

on January 1, 2003. This statement requires entities to record

the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation

in the period in which it is incurred. The amount recorded as

a liability will be capitalized by increasing the carrying

amount of the related long-lived asset. Subsequent to initial

measurement, the liability is accreted to the ultimate amount

anticipated to be paid and is also adjusted for revisions to the

timing or amount of estimated cash flows. The capitalized

cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset.

Upon settlement of the liability, an entity either settles the



obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss

upon settlement. The company has not determined the

izopact, if any, that this statement will have on its consolidat-

ed financial position or results of operations.

IMPAIRMENT OR DISPOSAL OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS -

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, "Accounting for

the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," which

became effective for the company on January 1, 2002. This

statement further refines the rules for accounting for long-

lived assets and measuring impairment. The company

believes the adoption of this statement will not have a

material impact on its consolidated financial position or

results of operations.

NOTE 3 - INVENTORIES

2001 2000

Finished products	 	 $124,503 $124,755

Products in process 	 48,859 56,908

Raw materials 	 64,504 61,706

Supplies and engine test parts 	 16,744 16,764

$254,610 $260,133

Inventories on the LIFO method were 27% and 22% of con-

solidated inventories at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respec-

tively. The current replacement cost of these inventories

exceeded the LIFO cost at December 31, 2001 and 2000, by

$49.7 million and $54.5 million, respectively. During 2000,

some inventory quantities were reduced, resulting in a liqui-

dation of certain LIFO inventory quantities carried at lower

costs in prior years as compared with costs at December 31,

2000. The effect of this liquidation increased income before

income taxes by $1.4 million.

NOTE 4 - SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

2001 2000

Long-term debt consists of:

5.875% notes, due 2008,
including fair value adjustment of
$11,851 for derivative hedge
instruments in 2001	 	 $211,851 $200,000

7.25% debentures, due 2025 	 100,000 100,000

Debt supported by long-term
banking arrangements:

Commercial paper at weighted
average rates of 2.1%
and 6.5% 	 50,000 50,000

Marine terminal refunding revenue
bonds, at 1.7% and 4.9%,
due 2018 	 18,375 18,375

Term loans:

Yen denominated, at 1.6% to
2.8%, due 2002 -2003 	 8,728 13,253

Euro denominated, at 3.5%
to 5.0%, due 2004 - 2010 	 	 372 458

389,326 382,086

Less current portion	 	 (1,215) (3,303)

$388,111 $378,783
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2001	 2000

Short-term debt consists of:

Commercial paper at weighted
average rate of 6.5% 	 1,300

Other short-term debt at weighted
average rates of 1.1% and 3.6% 	 S	 7,905 $ 12,549

Current portion of long-term debt 	 1,215 3,303

$	 9,120 $ 17,152

In May 2000, the company borrowed $18,375,000 through

the issuance of marine terminal refunding revenue bonds, the

proceeds of which were used to repay previously issued

marine terminal refunding revenue bonds. The bonds have a

stated maturity of July 1, 2018, and bear interest at a variable

rate which is determined weekly by the remarketing agent

(the interest rate at December 31, 2001, was 1.65%). The

bonds may be put to the company by the bondholders at

each weekly interest reset date; however, the company

expects that these bonds would then be remarketed.

In November 1998, the company issued notes having an

aggregate principal amount of $200 million. The notes are

unsecured, senior obligations of the company that mature on

December 1, 2008, and bear interest at 5.875% per annum,

payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each

year. The notes have no sinking fund requirement but are

redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of the com-

pany. The company incurred debt issuance costs aggregating

$10.5 million, including a loss of $6.5 million related to closed

Treasury rate lock agreements originally entered into as a

hedge against changes in interest rates relative to the antici-

pated issuance of these notes. Debt issuance costs are

deferred and then amortized as a component of interest

expense over the ten-n of the notes. Including debt issuance

costs, these notes have an effective annualized interest rate of

6.6% to the company.

The company has debentures outstanding in an aggregate

principal amount of $100 million. These debentures are unse-

cured, senior obligations of the company that mature on June

15, 2025, and bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.25%

payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each

year. The debentures are not redeemable prior to maturity

and are not subject to any sinking fund requirements.

The company has committed revolving credit facilities of

$575 million. $175 million of these facilities expire on July 16,

2002; $50 million on June 30, 2003; and $350 million on July

17, 2006. These facilities, which were unused at December

31, 2001, permit the company to borrow at or below the U.S.

prime rate. These facilities also permit the company to refi-

nance beyond one year $400 million of debt, which by its

terms is due within one year. As permitted by these and

previously existing credit facilities, the company classified

as long-term at each balance sheet date the portion of com-

mercial paper borrowings expected to remain outstanding
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throughout the following year and the amount due under the

marine terminal refunding revenue bonds, whose bondhold-

ers have the right to put the bonds back to the company.

Amounts clue on long-term debt are $1.2 million in 2002,

$7.6 million in 2003, $50.0 million in 2006 and $330.5 million

thereafter.

The company has interest rate swap agreements, which

expire in March 2005, that exchange variable rate interest

obligations on a notional principal amount of $50 million For

a fixed rate of 7.6%. The company also has interest rate

swap agreements, which expire in December 2008, which

effectively convert the interest on $100 million of outstand-

ing 5.875% notes due 2008 to a variable rate of three-month

LIBOR less 159.125 basis points (see Note 13).

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized, amounted to $23.3

million, $26.9 million and $28.8 million during 2001, 2000

and 1999, respectively. The company capitalizes interest on

qualifying capital projects. The amount of interest capitalized

during 2001, 2000 and 1999 amounted to $.2 million, $.2 mil-

lion and $.1 million, respectively.

NOTE 5 - OTHER BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Receivables: 2001 2000

Customers 	 $242,408 $261,881

Affiliates	 	 6,664 6,408

Other 	 29,941 22,267

$279,013 $290,556

Receivables are net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

$5.3 million in 2001 and $5.7 million in 2000.

Property and Equipment - at cost: 2001 2000

Land and improvements 	 $	 105,795 $	 106,009

Buildings and improvements 	 303,924 311,683

Machinery and equipment 	 1,190,710 1,174,254

Construction in progress 	 47,667 49,100

$1,648,096 $1,641,046

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment

was $84.7 million in 2001, $88.0 million in 2000 and $88.3

million in 1999.

Dividends payable was $13.3 million at the end of both 2001

and 2000 and is included in accounts payable.

Accrued Expenses and Other
Current Liabilities: 2001 2000

Employee compensation 	 $ 41,728 $ 39,888

Income taxes	 	 28,885 34,403

Taxes other than income 	 19,502 18,109

Special charges and acquisition
assimilation costs	 	 150 1,886

Other 	 29,996 29,234

$120,261 $123,520

Noncurrent Liabilities: 2001 2000

Employee benefits 	 $ 36,807 $ 39,250

Other 	 18,333 13,571

$ 55,140 $ 52,821

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The company has 147 million authorized shares consisting of

2 million shares of serial preferred stock, 25 million shares of

serial preference shares and 120 million common shares, each

of which is without par value. Common shares outstanding

exclude common shares held in treasury of 35,043,787 and

34,888,206 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The company has a shareholder rights plan under which one

right to buy one-half common share has been distributed for

each common share held. The rights may become exercisable

under certain circumstances involving actual or potential

acquisitions of 20% or more of the common shares by a per-

son or affiliated persons who acquire stock without comply-

ing with the requirements of the company's articles of incor-

poration. The rights would entitle shareholders, other than

this person or affiliated persons, to purchase common shares

of the company or of certain acquiring persons at 50% of

then current market value. At the option of the directors, the

rights may be exchanged For common shares, and may be

redeemed in cash, securities or other consideration. The

rights will expire in 2007 unless redeemed earlier.

32

Goodwill and Intangible Assets - net: 2001 2000

Goodwill	 	 $187,978 $177,686

Intangible assets 	 41,669 41,878

229,647 219,564

Less accumulated amortization 	 63,089 48,971

$166,558 $170,593
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) shown in the consolidated statements of shareholders' equity at December 31,

2001, 2000 and 1999 is comprised of the following:

December 31, 1998 	

Other Comprehensive Income:

Pre-tax 	

Tax benefit 	

Total 	

December 31, 1999 	

Other Comprehensive Income:

Pre-tax 	

Tax benefit 	

Total 	

December 31, 2000 	

Other Comprehensive Income:

Pre-tax cumulative effect of accounting change - SEAS 133 	

Pre-tax 	

Tax benefit 	

Total 	

December 31, 2001 	

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustment

Unrealized
Losses Interest

Rate Swaps

Pension Plan
Minimum
Liability

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

$(25,527) $(25,527)

(27,923) $	 (838) (28,761)

45 293 338

(27,878) (545) (28,423)

(53,405) (545) (53,950)

(26,543) (738) (27,281)

300 305 605

(26,243) (433) (26,676)

(79,648) (978) (80,626)

$(2,021) (2,021)

(17,022) (1,715) (538) (19,275)

528 1,308 274 2,110

(16,494) (2,428) (264) (19,186)

$(96,142) $(2,428) $(1,242) $(99,812)

NOTE 7 - OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET

2001	 2000	 1999

Equity earnings of noncon-
solidated companies 	 $ 2,196	 $ 1,483	 $ 5,735

Amortization of goodwill
and intangible assets	 (14,118)	 (12,847)	 (11,430)

Currency exchange/
transaction loss 	 	 (3,041)	 (1,528)	 (3,108)

Other-net 	 (113)	 (1,170) 	 2,099

	

$(15,076)	 5(14,062)	 $ (6,704)

NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is based upon income before

tax for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax conse-

quences of temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial

reporting purposes. In estimating future tax consequences, the

company considers anticipated future events, except changes

in tax laws or rates, which are recognized when enacted.

Income before income taxes consists of the following:

2001 2000 1999

United States 	 $ 79,576 $ 94,016 $113,904

Foreign 	 60,373 76,332 81,446

Total 	 $139,949 $170,348 $195,350

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

2001 2000 1999

Current:

United States	 	 $25,891 $14,679 $46,983

Foreign 	 22,334 29,861 24,063

48,225 44,540 71,046

Deferred:

United States 	 (4,992) 6,613 (3,467)

Foreign 	 2,600 1,186 4,779

(2,392) 7,799 1,312

Total 	 $45,833 $52,339 $72,358

The United States tax provision includes the U.S. tax on for-

eign income distributed to the company. The provision for

taxes outside the United States includes withholding taxes.

The differences between the provision for income taxes at

the U.S. statutory rate and the tax shown in the consolidated

statements of income are summarized as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Tax at statutory rate of 35% $48,982 $59,622 $68,373

State and local taxes 	 1,230 1,081 2,815

Foreign sales corporation
earnings 	 (4,223) (4,767) (1,923)

Technology donation 	 (6,027)

Foreign deferred tax
valuation allowance 	 124 (974) (3,904)

Other foreign tax differences 1,034 3,388 3,954

Equity income 	 (3,857) (267) (875)

Other - net 	 2,543 283 - 3,918

Provision for income taxes 	 $45,833 $52,339 $72,358
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to sig-

nificant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at

December 31 are as follows:
2001 2000

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued compensation
and benefits 	 $ 46,595 $ 46,489

Intercompany profit in inventory 9,267 11,163

Net operating losses
carried forward 	 6,151 7,687

Other 	 9,436 7,613

Total gross deferred tax assets	 	 71,449 72,952

Less valuation allowance 	 (4,303) (4,179)

Net deferred tax assets 	 67,146 68,773

Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and other
basis differences 	 91,580 95,049

Undistributed foreign
equity income	 	 4,501 6,662

Inventory basis differences 	 177 2,227

Other 	 7,545 5,954

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 	 	 103,803 109,892

Net deferred tax liabilities	 	 $ 36,657 $ 41,119

At December 31, 2001, certain foreign subsidiaries had net

operating loss carryforwards of $20.1 million for income tax

purposes, of which $1.2 million expire in years 2001 through

2011 and $18.9 million has no expiration. After evaluating tax

planning strategies and historical and projected profitability, a

valuation allowance has been recognized to reduce the

deferred tax assets related to those carryforwards to the

amount expected to be realized. The net change in the total

valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2001,

2000 and 1999, was an increase of $0.1 million, a decrease of

$ I.() million and a decrease of $3.9 million, respectively.

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes are not pro-

vided on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries,

which are considered to be indefinitely reinvested in the

operations of such subsidiaries. The amount of these earn-

ings was approximately $409.6 million at December 31,

2001. Determination of the net amount of unrecognized U.S.

income tax with respect to these earnings is not practicable.

Income taxes paid during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $49.7

million, $36.4 million and $59.1 million, respectively.

NOTE 9 - PENSION, PROFIT SHARING AND OTHER
POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The company has noncontributory defined benefit pension

plans covering most employees. Pension benefits under these

plans are based on years of service and the employee's com-

pensation. The company's funding policy in the United

States is to contribute amounts to satisfy the Internal Rev-

enue Service funding standards and elsewhere to fund

amounts in accordance with local regulations. Several of the

company's defined benefit plans are not funded. Plan assets

are invested principally in marketable equity securities and

fixed income instruments.

The company also provides certain non-pension postretire-

ment benefits, primarily health care and life insurance bene-

fits, for retired employees. Most of the the company's full-

time employees in the U.S. become eligible for health care

benefits after attaining specified years of service and age 55 at

retirement. Full-time employees who retire before January 1,

2003 are also eligible for life insurance benefits. Participants

contribute a portion of the cost of these benefits. The compa-

ny's non-pension postretirement benefit plans are not funded.

Net periodic pension cost of the company's defined benefit

pension plans consists of:

2001 2000 1999

Service cost - benefits
earned during period 	 $ 11,673 $ 10,379 $ 11,843

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation 	 20,425 17,972 17,589

Expected return on
plan assets 	 (26,860) (25,809) (25,873)

Amortization of prior
service costs 	 3,127 2,124 1,771

Amortization of initial
net asset	 	 (1,218) (1,106) (1,264)

Recognized net actuarial
(gain) loss	 	 (1,045) (2,370) 507

Settlement (gain) loss 	 142 (5,474)

Net periodic pension cost 	 $	 6,244 $	 1,190 $	 (901)

The company also has defined contribution plans, principally

involving profit sharing plans and a 401(k) savings plan, cov-

ering most employees in the United States and at certain

non-U.S. subsidiaries. Expense for all defined contribution

retirement plans was $9.6 million in 2001, $7.9 million in

2000 and $9.0 million in 1999.

As discussed in Note 15, the company initiated a cost reduc-

tion program and recognized special termination benefits of

$11.6 million in 1999, comprised of $3.1 million and $8.5 mil-

lion included in the special charges recognized in the first and

third quarters of 1999, respectively. The $8.5 million of spe-

cial termination benefits includes $3.2 million and $1.5 mil-

lion of special termination benefits that were recognized as

part of the U.S. pension benefit obligation in 2000 and 1999,

respectively. The company also recognized a settlement gain

of $10.0 million in the fourth quarter of 1999 in the United

States, $4.5 million of which was recorded as an adjustment

to the special charge and $5.5 million recorded as a reduction

in net periodic pension cost.
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Net non-pension postretirement benefit cost consists of:
2001 2000 1999

SArvice cost - benefits earned during period	 	 $ 1,569 $ 1,326 $ 1,468

Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation 	 	 6,387 5,387 4,728

Amortization of prior service costs 	 (4,501) (3,173) (3,218)

Recognized net actuarial loss 	 944 7 23

Curtailment gain	 	 (1,358)

Settlement loss	 	 853

Net non-pension postretirement benefits cost 	 $ 3,894 $ 3,547 $ 3,001

The change in benefit obligation and plan assets for 2001 and 2000 and the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance

sheets at December 31 of the company's defined benefit pension and non-pension postretirement plans are as follows:

Pension Plans Other Benefits

2001 2000 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 	 $294,835 $264,877 $	 74,659 $71,500

Service cost 	 11,673 10,379 1,569 1,326

Interest cost	 	 20,425 17,972 6,387 5,387

Plan participants' contributions	 	 202 114

Actuarial loss	 	 15,269 961 42,846 426

Currency exchange rate change 	 (5,147) (9,165) (114) (96)

Amendments 	 2,592 21,368 (26,312) 504

Acquisitions	 	 2,110 719

Curtailments 	 (1,600)

Special termination benefits	 	 3,226

Benefits paid 	 (27,890) (17,007) (6,408) (4,388)

Benefit obligation at end of year 	 311,959 294,835 91,746 74,659

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 	 319,635 324,534

Actual return on plan assets 	 (21,145) 13,427

Acquisition 	 3,130

Employer contributions 	 	 4,400 4,255 6,408 4,388

Plan participants' contributions	 	 202 114

Currency exchange rate change 	 (1,488) (8,818)

Benefits paid	 	 (27,890) (17,007) (6,408) (4,388)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 	 273,714 319,635

Plan assets greater (less) than the benefit obligation 	 (38,245) 24,800 (91,746) (74,659)

Unrecognized net loss (gain) 	 	 24,138 (37,419) 35,755 (5,083)

Unrecognized net transition obligation (asset)	 	 (1,488) (1,839)

Unrecognized prior service cost 	 	 26,847 26,509 (45,556) (23,725)

Net amount recognized	 	 $ 11,252 $ 12,051 $(101,547) $(103,467)

Amount recognized in the statement of
financial position consists of:

Prepaid_ benefit cost	 	 $ 27,934 $ 25,031

Accrued benefit liability	 	 (20,361) (16,365) $(101,547) $(103,467)

Accumulated other comprehensive income	 	 2,114 1,576

Intangible asset 	 1,565 1,809

Net amount recognized	 	 $ 11,252 $ 12,051 $(101,547) $(103,467)
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The weighted average assumptions as of December 31:

Discount rate for determining funded status 	 	

Expected return on plan assets 	

Rate of compensation increase 	

Pension Plans Other Benefits

2001 2000

7.00%

8.55%

3.93%

2001 2000

7.69%6.67%

8.45%

3.82%

7.31%

The projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets

for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess

of plan assets were $304.2 million and $265.6 million, respec-

tively, as of December 31, 2001, and $30.0 million and $9.4

million, respectively, as of December 31, 2000. The accumu-

lated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for pen-

sion plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of

plan assets were $23.7 million and $7.1 million, respectively,

as of December 31, 2001, and $23.2 million and $7.9 million,

respectively, as of December 31, 2000.

The weighted average of the assumed health care cost trend

rates used in measuring the accumulated postretirement ben-

efit obligation for the company's postretirement benefit plans

at December 31, 2001, was 8.82%, (5.99% at December 31,

2000), with subsequent annual decrements to an ultimate

trend rate of 4.95% by 2009. The assumed health care cost

trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported

for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in the

assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following

effects as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001:

One-Percentage-Point

Increase	 Decrease

Effect on postretirement
benefit obligation 	 	 $13,228 	$(11,105)

Effect on total service and interest
cost components 	 	 $ 1,681 	$ (1,281)

NOTE 10 — LEASES

The company has commitments under operating leases pri-

marily for office space, terminal facilities, land, railroad tank

cars and various computer and office equipment. Rental

expense was $14.0 million in 2001, $16.2 million in 2000 and

$18.5 million in 1999. Future minimum rental commitments

under operating leases having initial or remaining noncance-

lable lease terms exceeding one year are $12.5 million in

2002, $9.1 million in 2003, $6.5 million in 2004, $5.9 million

in 2005, $3.3 million in 2006 and $12.0 million thereafter.

Minimum rental commitments are net of estimated credits

for railroad usage of $2.3 million in 2002, $1.8 million in

2003, $1.5 million in 2004, $1.3 million in 2005, $.7 million in

2006 and $.5 million thereafter.

NOTE 11 — ACQUISITIONS

In 2001, the company spent $14.7 million on an acquisition

to purchase ROSS Chem, Inc., a manufacturer and supplier of

antifoam and defoaming agents, with annual revenues of

$10.0 million, that expanded the company's product lines in

metalworking and paints, coatings and inks. Also in 2001, the

company dissolved the joint venture with GE Transportation

Systems and replaced the joint venture with separate cross-
licensing agreements.

In 2000, the company acquired certain assets of a metalwork-

ing additive company with 1999 revenues of approximately

$20 million; acquired an additional 10% interest in its India

joint venture, bringing the ownership interest up to 50%; and

invested in a joint venture with GE Transportation Systems

relating to products and services for diesel engine fluids. The

company's aggregate investment in these acquisitions was
approximately $41 million.

NOTE 12 — BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND
GEOGRAPHIC REPORTING

The company aggregates its product lines into two principal

operating segments: fluid technologies for transportation and

fluid technologies for industry. Fluid technologies for trans-

portation is comprised of additives for lubricating engine oils,

such as for gasoline, diesel, marine and stationary gas engines

and additive components; additives for driveline oils, such as

automatic transmission fluids, gear oils and tractor lubricants;

and additives for fuel products and refinery and oil field

chemicals. In addition, the company sells additive compo-

nents and viscosity improvers within its lubricant and fuel

additives product lines. The company's fluid technologies for

transportation product lines are generally produced in shared

manufacturing facilities and sold largely to a common cus-

tomer base. Fluid technologies for industry includes industrial

additives, such as additives for hydraulic fluids, metalwork-

ing fluids and compressor lubricants; performance chemicals,

such as additives for coatings and inks and process chemicals;

and performance systems, comprised principally of fluid

metering devices and particulate emission trap devices.

The company's accounting policies for its operating segments

are the same as those described in Note 2. The company

evaluates performance and allocates resources based on seg-

ment contribution income, which is revenues less expenses

directly identifiable to the product lines aggregated within

each segment. In addition, the company allocates corporate

research, testing, selling and administrative expenses in arriv-

ing at segment operating profit before tax.



THE LUBRIZOL CORPORATION

a a •

The following table presents a summary of the company's

reportable segments for the years ended December 31:

2001 2000 1999

Fluid technologies for
transportation:

Revenues from
external customers 	 $1,531,542 $1,462,601 $1,479,331

Equity earnings (loss) .. 	 	 4,091 3,064 5,288

Goodwill and intangibles
amortization	 	 	 5,595 5,290 5,100

Segment contribution
income 	 	 288,385 277,879 345,276

Operating profit
before tax	 	 	 152,474 141,609 193,094

Segment total assets	 1,084,084 1,132,782 1,116,680

Capital expenditures	 60,304 78,887 58,123

Depreciation	 	 	 78,208 81,769 82,129

Fluid technologies for industry:

Revenues from external
customers	 	 	 $ 313,102 $ 313,179 $ 300,998

Equity earnings (loss) 	 	 (1,895) (1,581) 447

Goodwill and intangibles
amortization	 	 	 8,523 7,557 6,330

Segment contribution
income 	 	 23,605 39,695 45,827

Operating profit
before tax 	 	 5,729 23,118 26,041

Segment total assets 	 237,259 249,782 247,779

Capital expenditures	 6,012 6,870 6,749

Depreciation	 	 	 6,506 6,218 6,161

Reconciliation to
consolidated income
before tax:

Segment operating profit
before tax 	 	 $ 158,203 $ 164,727 $ 219,135

Gain from litigation
settlements	 	 19,395 17,626

Special (charges) credits . 4,484 (19,569)

Interest expense - net	 . 	 	 (18,254) (18,258) (21,842)

Consolidated income
before tax 	 	 $ 139,949 $ 170,348 $ 195,350

Revenues from
external customers
by product group:

Engine oil additives 	 $1,019,465 $ 944,538 $ 942,618

Driveline oil additives . 	 407,514 401,267 414,929

Fuel additives and
refinery oil additives 	 	 74,730 90,262 105,406

Additive components 	 	 29,833 26,534 16,378

Fluid technologies for
transportation	 	 	 1,531,542 1,462,601 1,479,331

Industrial additives 	 	 171,566 173,262 158,147

Performance chemicals 	 .	 117,850 112,142 108,692

Performance systems	 23,686 27,775 34,159

Fluid technologies
for industry	 	 	 313,102 313,179 300,998

Total revenues from
external customers 	 $1,844,644 $1,775,780 $1,780,329

In order to conform amounts to current-year classifications,

prior-year amounts have been restated to reflect reclassifica-

tions of products between fluid technologies for transporta-

tion and fluid technologies for industry operating segments.

Segment results reflect the exclusion for internal manage-

ment reporting purposes, effective January 1, 2000, of excess

production capacity from product costs (this change has no

effect on segment operating profit before tax).

Revenues are attributable to countries based on the location

of the customer. The United States is the only country where

sales to external customers comprise in excess of 10% of the

company's consolidated revenues. Revenues from external

customers by geographic area are as follows:

2001 2000 1999

United States	 	 $	 740,786 $	 692,720 $	 684,037

Other North American 82,962 66,478 60,994

Europe, Middle East 	 551,691 533,049 583,475

Asia-Pacific 	 337,185 347,658 324,349

Latin America 	 132,020 135,875 127,474

Total revenues from
external customers 	 $1,844,644 $1,775,780 $1,780,329

The company's sales and receivables are concentrated in the

oil and chemical industries. The company's lubricant and

fuel additive customers consist primarily of oil refiners and

independent oil blenders and are located in more than 100

countries. The ten largest customers, most of which are inter-

national oil companies and a number of which are groups of

affiliated entities, comprised approximately 53% of consoli-

dated sales in 2001, 48% of consolidated sales in 2000 and

46% of consolidated sales in 1999. In 2001, there was no

single customer that accounted for more than 10% of rev-

enues. The company's largest single customer, including its

affiliated entities, predominantly within fluid technologies

for transportation segment, accounted for revenues of $185.3

million in 2000 and $214.4 million in 1999.

The table below presents a reconciliation of segment total

assets to consolidated total assets for the years ended Decem-

ber 31:
2001 2000 1999

Total segment assets 	 	 $1,321,343 $1,382,564 $1,364,459

Corporate assets 	 340,976 276,926 317,895

Total consolidated assets	 	 $1,662,319 $1,659,490 $1,682,354

Segment assets include receivables, inventories and long-lived

assets including goodwill and intangible assets. Corporate

assets include cash and short-term investments, investments

accounted for on the cost basis and other current and noncur-

rent assets.
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The company's principal long-lived assets are located in the

following countries at December 31:

2001 2000

United States	 	 $532,827 $535,909

France	 	 66,638 77,806

England 	 106,008 114,174

All other	 	 105,366 119,946

Total long-lived assets 	 $810,839 $847,835

Net income of non-U.S. subsidiaries was $35 million in 2001,

$45 million in 2000 and $53 million in 1999; and dividends

received from these subsidiaries were $55 million, $31 mil-

lion and $22 million, respectively.

The company is exposed to the effect of changes in foreign

currency rates on its earnings and cash flow as a result of

doing business internationally. In addition to working capital

management, pricing and sourcing, the company selectively

uses foreign currency forward contracts to lessen the poten-

tial effect of currency changes. These contracts generally

relate to transactions with maturities of less than one year.

The maximum amount of foreign currency forward contracts

outstanding at any one time was $17.9 million in 2001, $24.3

million in 2000 and $18.9 million in 1999. At December 31,

2001, the company had short-term forward contracts to sell

currencies at various dates during 2002 for $4.9 million.

These forward contracts are not designated as hedges. Any

changes in the fair value of these contracts are recorded in

other income. The fair value of these instruments at Decem-

ber 31, 2001 and the related adjustment recorded in other

income was an unrealized loss of $.2 million.

The company is exposed to market risk from changes in

interest rates. The company's policy is to manage interest

rate cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt. To man-

age this mix in a cost-efficient manner, the company may

enter into interest rate swaps, in which the company agrees

to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between

fixed and variable interest amounts calculated by reference to

an agreed-upon notional principal amount. Interest payments

receivable and payable under the terms of the interest rate

swap agreements are accrued over the period to which the

payment relates and the net difference is treated as an adjust-

ment of interest expense related to the underlying liability.

At December 31, 2001, the company had interest rate swap

agreements to convert existing fixed-rate debt to variable

rates. The fair value of these swaps was an unrealized gain of

$11.9 million. These swaps are designated as fair value hedges

of underlying fixed rate debt obligations and are recorded as

an increase in noncurrent assets and long-term debt. These

interest rate swaps qualify for the short-cut method for

assessing hedge effectiveness per SFAS 133. Changes in fair

value of the interest rate swaps are offset by the change in

fair value of the underlying debt. As a result, there was no

impact to earnings in 2001 due to hedge ineffectiveness.

At December 31, 2001, the company had interest rate swap

agreements to convert existing variable rate debt to fixed rates.

The fair value of these swaps was an unrealized loss of $4.8

million. These swaps are designated as cash flow hedges of

underlying variable rate debt obligations and are recorded as a

noncurrent liability. The adjustment to record the net change

in fair value during 2001 of $3.7 million ($2.4 million net of

tax) unrealized loss was recorded in other comprehensive

income. This includes the transition adjustment of $2.0 mil-

lion ($1.3 million net of tax) as of January 1, 2001. Ineffective-

ness was determined to be immaterial in 2001. The company

does not expect any significant portion of these existing loss-

es to be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months.

NOTE 13 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company has various financial instruments, including

cash and short-term investments, investments in nonconsoli-

dated companies, foreign currency forward contracts, interest

rate swaps and short- and long-term debt. The company has

determined the estimated fair value of these financial instru-

ments by using available market information and generally

accepted valuation methodologies. The use of different mar-

ket assumptions or estimation methodologies could have a

material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The esti-

mated fair value of the company's debt instruments at

December 31, 2001 approximates $391.6 million compared

with the carrying value of $397.2 million. The company uses

derivative financial instruments only to manage well-defined

foreign currency and interest rate risks. The company does

not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Effective January 1, 2001, the company adopted Statement

of Financial Accounting Standard No. 133, "Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" (SFAS 133),

as amended. SFAS 133 requires the company to recognize all

derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value and establishes

criteria for designation and effectiveness of hedging relation-

ships. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to

fair value through income. Depending upon the nature of

the hedge, changes in fair value of the derivative are either

offset against the change in Fair value of assets, liabilities or

firm commitments through earnings or recognized in other

comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized

in earnings. The ineffective portion of a derivative's change

in value is immediately recognized in earnings. The adop-

tion of SFAS 133 did not have a material cumulative effect

on net income as of January 1, 2001, but did result in a $2
38	 million reduction ($1.3 million net of tax) of other compre-

hensive income.
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NOTE 14 — STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The 1991 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the granting of

ristricted and unrestricted shares and options to buy com-

mon shares up to an amount equal to 1% of the outstanding

common shares at the beginning of any year, plus any

unused amount from prior years. Options are intended either

to qualify as "incentive stock options" under the Internal

Revenue Code or to be "non-statutory stock options" not

intended to so qualify. Under the 1991 Plan, options generally

become exercisable 50% one year after grant, 75% after two

years, 100% after three years, and expire up to ten years after

grant. "Reload options," which are options to purchase addi-

tional shares if a grantee uses already-owned shares to pay

for an option exercise, are granted automatically once per

year for options granted prior to March 28, 2000 under the

1991 Plan; and may be granted at the discretion of the admin-

istering committee under the 1985 Employee Stock Option

Plan and for options granted on or after March 28, 2000

under the 1991 Plan. The 1991 Plan generally supersedes the

1985 Plan, although options outstanding under the 1985 Plan

remain exercisable until their expiration dates. The option

price for stock options under the 1985 Plan is the fair market

value of the shares on the date of grant. The option price for

stock options under the 1991 Plan is not less than the fair

market value of the shares on the date of grant. Both plans

permit or permitted the granting of stock appreciation rights

in connection with the grant of options. In addition, the 1991

Plan provides to each outside director of the company an

automatic annual grant of an option to purchase 2,500 com-

mon shares in 2001 and 2000 and 2,000 common shares in

1999, with terms generally comparable to employee stock

options. In 2001, the 1991 Plan provided for the grant to each

outside director of a one-time additional option to purchase

2,500 common shares as an incentive relating to Lubrizol's

five-year strategic initiatives.

Under the 1991 Stock Incentive Plan, the company has

granted performance share stock awards to certain executive

officers. Common shares equal to the number of perfor-

mance share stock awards granted will be issued if the

market price of the company's common stock reaches $45

per common share for ten consecutive trading days, or on

March 24, 2003, whichever occurs first. Under certain condi-

tions such as retirement, a grantee of performance share

stock awards may be issued a pro-rata number of common

shares. The market value of the company's common shares

at date of grant of the performance share stock awards was

$30.40 per share (for 750 awards) in 2001, $28.06 per share

(for 3,000 awards) and $25.38 (for 1,500 awards) in 2000. No

awards were granted in 1999. The company recognizes com-

pensation expense related to performance share stock awards

ratably over the estimated period of vesting. Compensation

costs recognized for performance share stock awards were

approximately $50,000 in 2001, $.1 million in 2000 and

$.8 million in 1999.

Under the deferred stock compensation plan for outside

directors, each nonemployee director receives 500 share units

on each October 1 and is credited with additional share units

for quarterly dividends paid on the company's shares. When

a participant ceases to be a director, the company issues

shares equal to the number of share units in the director's

account. The company has allocated to nonemployee direc-

tors 6,028, 6,210 and 5,932 share units under this plan in

2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Director fee expense rec-

ognized for share units was approximately $.2 million in

2001, $.1 million in 2000 and $.2 million in 1999. At Decem-

ber 31, 2001, 37,229 share units for nonemployee directors

were outstanding.

Under the deferred compensation plan for executive officers,

participants may elect to defer any amount of their variable

pay. Deferred amounts are converted into share units based

on the current market price of the company's shares, which

are then multiplied by 1.25. Additional share units are credit-

ed for quarterly dividends paid on the company's shares. At

the end of the deferral period, which is at least three years,

the company issues shares equal to the number of share units

in the participant's account. The company has allocated to

executive officers 16,628, 26,787 and 862 share units under

this plan in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Compensation

costs recognized for share units were approximately $.5 mil-

lion in 2001, $.7 million in 2000 and $20,000 in 1999. At

December 31, 2001, 54,925 share units for executive officers

were outstanding.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America encourage the fair-value based method of

accounting for stock compensation plans under which the

value of stock-based compensation is estimated at the date of

grant using valuation formulas, but permit the use of intrin-

sic-value accounting. The company accounts for its stock

compensation plans using the intrinsic-value accounting

method (measured as the difference between the exercise

price and the market value of the stock at date of grant). If

the fair value method to measure compensation cost for the

company's stock compensation plans had been used, exclud-

ing the performance share stock awards, the company's net

income would have been reduced by $6.0 million in 2001,

$3.5 million in 2000 and $2.5 million in 1999 with a corre-

sponding reduction in net income per share of $.12 in 2001,

$.07 in 2000 and $.05 in 1999.
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Disclosures under the fair value method are estimated using

the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following

weighted-average assumptions for grants of stock options in

the following years:
2001 2000 1999

1985 Plan:

Risk-free interest rate 	 6.5%

Dividend yield	 	 3.4%

Volatility 	 23%

Expected life (years) 	 .5

1991 Plan:

Risk-free interest rate .. 5.1% 6.0% 6.4%

Dividend yield	 	 2.9% 4.0% 3.4%

Volatility 	 25% 27% 24%

Expected life (years) 	 9.7 9.8 9.9

The fair value per share of the performance share stock

awards granted in 2001 was $28.69, using the following

assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 3.15%; dividend yield

of 2.9%; volatility of 25%; and an expected life of two years.

The Fair value per share of the performance share stock

awards granted in 2000 was $24.90 (for 3,000 awards) and

$22.52 (for 1,500 awards), using the following assumptions:

risk-free interest rate of 6.49%; dividend yield of 4.0%;

volatility of 27%; and an expected life of three years. There

was no activity for 1999. Dividends do not accumulate on

performance share stock awards.

Information regarding these option plans, excluding the per-

formance share stock awards, follows:

Shares

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Outstanding, January 1, 2000 	 3,968,742 $31.06

Granted 	 816,136 28.02

Exercised 	 (77,898) 20.41

Forfeited	 	 (82,845) 32.08

Outstanding, December 31, 2000 	 4,624,135 $30.68

Options exercisable,
December 31, 2000 	 3,415,820 $31.87

Weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the year 	 $ 7.49

Outstanding, January 1, 1999 	 3,483,316 $32.64

Granted 	 730,516 22.99

Exercised 	 (79,675) 20.31

Forfeited	 	 (165,415) 33.98

Outstanding, December 31, 1999 	 3,968,742 $31.06

Options exercisable,
December 31, 1999	 	 2,993,380 $32.51

Weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the year 	 $ 5.87

Information regarding the performance share stock awards

follows:

Shares

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Outstanding, January 1, 2001 	 4,624,135 $30.68

Granted 	 1,461,945 30.39

Exercised 	 (911,696) 28.05

Forfeited	 	 (347,118) 35.64

Outstanding, December 31, 2001 	 4,827,266 $30.74

Options exercisable,
December 31, 2001	 	 2,850,184 $31.73

Weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the year 	 $ 8.69

Shares

Outstanding, January 1, 2001	 	 65,500

Granted	 	 750

Outstanding, December 31, 2001 	 	 66,250

Outstanding, January 1, 2000	 	 67,000

Granted	 	 4,500

Forfeited 	 (3,043)

Common Shares Issued 	 (2,957)

Outstanding, December 31, 2000	 	 65,500

Outstanding, January 1, 1999	 	 67,166

Forfeited 	 (166)

Outstanding, December 31, 1999 	 	 67,000

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding, excluding the performance share stock awards,

at December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of
Exercise Prices

Number
Outstanding
at 12/31/01

Weighted-Average
Remaining

Contractual Life

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Number
Exercisable

at 12/31/01

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

$19 - $25 	 379,104 7.1 Years 21.35 257,597 21.35

25-	 31 	 2,963,906 7.6 29.49 1,114,331 28.95

31 -	 38 	 1,477,832 3.5 35.62 1,471,832 35.62

38- 45 	 6,424 5.9 38.46 6,424 38.46

4,827,266 6.3 $30.74 2,850,184 $31.73
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NOTE 15 — SPECIAL CHARGES

In January 1998, the company initiated a series of steps to

rgduce costs and improve its worldwide operating structure

and executed these steps in two programs over a period of

approximately two years. The first program, which began in

the fourth quarter of 1998, resulted in the reduction of

approximately 7% of the company's workforce, or 300

employees worldwide. Approximately 55% of this reduction

occurred prior to December 31, 1998, a further 35% occurred

in the first quarter of 1999 and the remainder was substan-

tially completed by the third quarter of 1999. Of the 300

employees, approximately 40% were in the manufacturing

area and 60% were in the selling, administrative, research

and testing areas. In addition, the company permanently

removed seven component production units from service

during this first program.

As adjusted, the first program included workforce reduction

cost estimated at $20.0 million and other exit costs estimated

at $2.1 million, including $2.0 million related to asset impair-

ments for production units taken out of service. Cash expen-

ditures of approximately $.4 million were made in 2000 and

$14.7 million in 1999 related to the cost reduction program.

The second program began in the third quarter of 1999 and

involved primarily the downsizing of the company's

Painesville, Ohio, manufacturing plant. This resulted in the

additional reduction of approximately 5% of the company's

workforce, or 187 employees, and the shutdown of 20 of

Painesville's 36 production systems. Approximately 23% of

the workforce reduction and shutdown of 12 of the produc-

tion systems occurred during 1999. The remainder of the

workforce reduction and production system shutdowns was

completed in 2000.

As adjusted, the second program included workforce reduc-

tion cost estimated at $5.5 million and other exit costs esti-

mated at $10.8 million, including $7.4 million related to asset

impairments for production units to be taken out of service.

Cash expenditures of approximately $1.8 million, $.9 million

and $1.3 million were made in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-

tively, related to the second cost reduction program. Addi-

tionally, $3.2 million and $1.5 million of special termination

benefits were recognized as part of the U.S. pension benefit

obligation in 2000 and 1999, respectively (see Note 9).

Approximately $.2 million remains as an accrued liability at

December 31, 2001, for equipment dismantling.

In the first quarter of 1999, the company recognized an

expense of $3.1 million, related to the first program to reflect

an adjustment for separation benefits, principally in Japan.

After-tax, this charge reduced net income by $2.9 million or

$.05 per share. In the third quarter of 1999, the company rec-

ognized special charges of $20.8 million related to the second

program. After-tax, this special charge reduced net income by

$12.9 million, or $.24 per share. In the fourth quarter of 1999,

the company recorded an adjustment of $4.3 million to reduce

the special charge related to the first program principally to

reflect a gain related to the settlement of pension obligations

for workforce reductions (see Note 9). After-tax, this adjust-

ment increased net income by $2.5 million or $.05 per share.

In the second quarter of 2000, the company recorded an

adjustment of $2.6 million to reduce the amount of the

special charge related to the second program, principally

because the cost of workforce reductions at the company's

Painesville facility was less than originally anticipated. After-

tax this adjustment increased net income by $1.7 million or

$.03 per share. In the fourth quarter of 2000, the company

recorded a pre-tax adjustment of $1.9 million ($1.2 million

after-tax or $.02 per share), to further reduce the amount of

the special charge due to lower-than-anticipated equipment

dismantling costs ($1.5 million) and lower workforce reduc-

tion costs ($.4 million).

NOTE 16— LITIGATION

The company previously filed claims against Exxon Corpora-

tion and/or its affiliates relating to various commercial mat-

ters, including alleged infringements by Exxon of certain of

the company's patents.

On October 12, 2000, the company reached a settlement of all

pending patent litigation with Imperial Oil Limited (Imperial),

a Canadian affiliate of Exxon Mobil Corporation. Under the

settlement agreement, Lubrizol received cash of $25.0 million

in October 2000. After deducting related expenses, this settle-

ment increased pre-tax income by $19.4 million in 2000.

On March 31, 1999, the company and Exxon Corporation

reached a settlement of all pending intellectual property liti-

gation between the two companies and their affiliates,

except for litigation pending in Canada. Under the settlement

agreement, Exxon paid the company cash of $16.8 million in

April 1999. After deducting related expenses, this settlement

increased pre-tax income by $14.5 million in 1999.

The company is party to lawsuits, threatened lawsuits and

other claims arising out of the normal course of business.

Management is of the opinion that any liabilities that may

result are adequately covered by insurance, or to the extent

not covered by insurance, are adequately accrued for at

December 31, 2001, or would not be significant in relation to

the company's financial position at December 31, 2001, or its

results of operations for the year then ended.
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HISTORICAL SUMMARY

(In Millions, Except Shareholders, Employees and Per Share Data) 2001 2000 1999 1998

OPERATING RESULTS:

Revenues	 	 $1,844.6 $1,775.8 $1,780.3 $1,650.2

Total cost and expenses 	 1,671.4 1,597.0 1,554.5 1,496.3

Other income (charges) 	 (15.1) (8.4) (30.5) (35.0)

Net income 	 94.1 118.0 123.0 71.2

- Before unusual items and
accounting changes	 	 94.1 103.1 125.3 86.5

Net income per share 	 1.84 2.22 2.25 1.27

- Before unusual items and
accounting changes	 	 1.84 1.94 2.30 1.55

FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Gross profit percentage 	 27.4 27.8 30.9 29.2

Percent of revenues:

Selling and administrative expenses 	 9.6 9.5 10.2 10.9

Research and testing expenses 	 8.6 8.5 8.2 9.1

Return on average shareholders' equity (%) 12.3 15.3 15.8 9.0

- Before unusual items and
accounting changes (%) 	 12.3 13.4 16.1 10.9

Debt to capitalization (%) 	 33.9 34.5 33.8 35.8

Current ratio	 	 2.9 2.6 2.5 2.5

OTHER INFORMATION:

Dividends declared per share 	 $1.04 $1.04 $1.04 $1.04

Average common shares outstanding 	 51.2 53.1 54.6 55.9

Capital expenditures	 	 $66.3 $85.8 $64.9 $93.4

Depreciation expense	 	 84.7 88.0 88.3 79.7

At Year End:

Total assets	 	 $1,662.3 $1,659.5 $1,682.4 $1,643.2

Total debt	 	 397.2 395.9 403.0 429.3

Total shareholders' equity	 	 773.2 752.3 790.1 769.1

Shareholders' equity per share 	 15.10 14.66 14.50 14.10

Common share price 	 35.09 25.75 30.88 25.69

Number of shareholders 	 4,335 4,681 5,126 5,609

Number of employees 	 4,530 4,390 4,074 4,324

Unusual items include special charges and credits for restructuring and for write-off of purchased technology, gains on investments, litigation settlement
gains and accounting changes.

In 2000 the company began reporting shipping fees and shipping costs gross in net sales and cost of sales, respectively. The company had previously
netted shipping fees against shipping costs in cost of sales. This change has no effect on the dollar amount of the company's gross profit or net income.
Revenues, total cost and expenses, and gross profit percentage for 1996-1999 have been reclassified to conform with current period classification.
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1 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

$1,706.9 $1,629.2 $1,663.6 $1,599.0 $1,525.5 $1,552.2 $1,476.3

1,474.6 1,434.6 1,478.0 1,397.0 1,362.2 1,390.5 1,308.7

(1.1) 56.1 40.0 49.4 (43.6) 15.4 10.5

154.9 169.8 151.6 175.6 45.6 124.6 123.7

154.9 135.2 126.6 148.8 113.5 124.6 123.7

2.68 2.80 2.37 2.67 .67 1.81 1.79

2.68 2.23 1.98 2.26 1.67 1.81 1.79

32.1 31.4 31.5 32.7 32.0 31.7 32.4

10.0 9.7 9.8 10.0 10.4 11.7 11.7

8.6 9.9 10.8 10.3 11.2 10.0 9.8

19.0 20.4 18.0 22.5 5.9 15.4 16.2

19.0 16.2 15.1 19.0 14.6 15.4 16.2

21.3 19.5 22.5 16.8 8.7 5.6 7.9

2.5 2.6 2.4 2.5 2.5 2.9 2.7

$1.01 $.97 $.93 $.89 $.85 $.81 $.77

57.8 60.7 63.8 65.7 67.7 69.0 69.3

$100.7 $94.3 $189.3 $160.5 $127.9 $95.8 $82.4

82.7 78.7 71.8 63.9 59.6 58.4 54.6

$1,462.3 $1,402.1 $1,492.0 $1,394.4 $1,182.6 $1,127.1 $1,171.7

220.3 198.5 247.1 167.9 69.6 48.4 67.8

815.4 819.4 849.0 832.0 732.2 819.4 794.5

14.31 14.00 13.48 12.83 11.00 11.97 11.51

36.88 31.00 27.75 33.88 34.13 27.25 28.25

5,661 5,764 6,304 6,494 6,616 6,822 6,767

4,291 4,358 4,601 4,520 4,613 4,609 5,299
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR AND DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

(212) 936-5100 (800) 937-5449

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at the Radisson Hotel &

Conference Center, Eastlake, Ohio, on April 22, 2002.

FORM 10-K

The Form 10-K Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission

will be available March 31, 2002. A copy may be obtained without charge

upon written request to the Secretary of the Corporation or from the

Lubrizol Web site.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The Common Shares of The Lubrizol Corporation are listed on the New

York Stock Exchange under the symbol LZ. The number of shareholders of

record of Common Shares was 4,306 as of February 8, 2002.

Investors and shareholders may purchase shares of stock through The

Lubrizol Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase and

Sale Plan. To participate in the Plan, contact our transfer agent, American

Stock Transfer & Trust Company, Dividend Reinvestment Department, at

(877) 573-3998 (toll free) or on the Internet at www.investpower.com .

INTERNET WEB SITE

Company and investor information is available at the Internet Web site

http://www.lubrizol.com .

(i) Printed on Recycled Paper



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WILLIAM G. BARES

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Director since 1981

JERALD A. BLUMBERG

Former Executive Vice President,
Chairman of DuPont Europe
Director since 1999

OFFICERS

W. G. BARES

Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

GEORGE R. HILL

Senior Vice President

JOSEPH W. BAUER

Vice President and General Counsel

RONALD A. MITSCH

Retired Vice Chairman and
Executive Vice President of 3M
Director since 1991

M. THOMAS MOORE

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of -Cleveland-Cliffs Inc.
Director since 1997

DANIEL E. SOMERS

Vice Chairman of Blaylock & Partners LP
Director since 1999

LESLIE M. REYNOLDS

Corporate Secretary and Counsel

RICHARD D. ROBINS

Vice President

JOHN R. AHERN

Controller-Accounting and

Financial Reporting

GREGORY R. LEWIS

Assistant Secretary

ROSANNE S. POTTER

Treasurer
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r

FOREST J. FARMER, SR.

President and Chief Executive Officer of
North American Interiors, Inc.
Director since 1997

GORDON D. HARNETT

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Brush Engineered Materials Inc.
Director since 1995

VICTORIA F. HAYNES

President of Research Triangle Institute
Director since 1995

DAVID H. HOAG

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of The LTV Corporation
Director since 1989

WILLIAM P. MADAR

Chairman of the Board of
Nordson Corporation
Director since 1992

PEGGY GORDON MILLER

President of South Dakota State University
Director since 1993

DONALD W. BOGUS

Vice President

CHARLES P. COOLEY

Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

STEPHEN A. DI BIASE

Vice President

JAMES L. HAIVIBRICK

Vice President

JOE E. HODGE

Vice President

K. H. HOPPING

Vice President

S. F. KIRK

Vice President

YANNICK LE COUEDIC

Vice President

MARK W. MEISTER

Vice President and Chief Ethics Officer



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND BRANCHES
Lubrizol Adibis (UK) Limited
Lubrizol Adibis Holdings (UK) Limited
Lubrizol Adibis Scandinavia A/S

Lubrizol Australia
Lubrizol do Brasil Aditivos Ltda.

Lubrizol Canada Limited
Lubrizol de Chile Limitada

Lubrizol China, Inc.
Lubrizol Coating Additives GmbH (Germany)

Lubrizol Espanola, S.A.

Lubrizol Europe B.V. (The Netherlands)
Lubrizol France S.A.S.
Lubrizol Gesellschaft m.b.H. (Austria)
Lubrizol GmbH (Germany)

Lubrizol International, Inc.
Lubrizol International Management Corporation

Lubrizol Italiana S.p.A.

Lubrizol Japan Limited
Lubrizol Korea
Lubrizol limited (England)

Lubrizol de Mexico, S. de RI.

Lubrizol de Mexico Comercial, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Lubrizol Overseas Trading Corporation
Lubrizol Performance Systems Inc.

Lubrizol Performance Systems Limited (England)
1,ubrizol S.A. (Belgium)

Lubrizol Servicios Tecnicos, S. de R.L. de C.V. (Mexico)
Lubrizol South Africa (Pty) Limited
Lubrizol Southeast Asia (Pte.) Ltd. (Singapore)

Lubrizol de Venezuela, C.A.
Carroll Scientific, Inc.
CPI Engineering Services, Inc.
Engine Control Systems Europe AB (Sweden)
Engine Control Systems Ltd. (US)
Engine Control Systems Ltd. (England)
Gateway Additive Company
Kabo Unlimited, Inc.
ROSS Chem, Inc.

Lanzhou Lubrizol — Lanlian Additive Co. Ltd. (China)

Shanghai Lubrizol International Trading Co., Ltd. (China)
Tianjin Lubrizol — Lanlian Additive Co. Ltd. (China)

AFFILIATES

Industrias Lubrizol S.A. de C.V. (Mexico)
Lubrizol India Private Limited
Lubrizol Transarabian Company, Ltd.

(Saudi Arabia)

TECHNICAL CENTERS

Hazelwood, England
Kinuura, Japan

Wickliffe, Ohio

MANUFACTURING PLANTS

Atlanta, Georgia
Countryside, Illinois
Midland, Michigan

Reno, Nevada
Painesville, Ohio
Mountaintop, Pennsylvania
Fountain Inn, South Carolina

Bayport, Texas
Deer Park, Texas
Houston, Texas
Cheyenne, Wyoming
Sydney, Australia
Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

London, Canada
Newmarket, Canada

Niagara Falls, Canada
Nyborg, Denmark
Bromborough, England

Fareham, England
LeHavre, France

Mourenx, France
Rouen, France
Hamburg, Germany

Ritterhude, Germany
Mumbai, India
Kinuura, Japan

Apodaca, Mexico
Yanbu, Saudi Arabia

Jurong, Singapore
Durban, South Africa
Malmo, Sweden

C LUBRIZOL
Fluid tochnologies for a better world'

29400 Lakeland Boulevard • Wickliffe, Ohio 44092-2298 • (440) 943-4200 • http://www.lubrizoLcom
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